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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND Exhibit K-1
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GENERAL FUND FDOE Page 1
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 Fund 100
REVENUES Account -
Number
Federal Direcr:
Federal Impact, Current Operations 3121 1,006,058 58
Reserve Officers Training Corps (ROTC) 3191
Miscellaneous Federal Direct 3199
Total Federal Direct 3100 1,006,058 58
Federal Through State and Local:
Medicaid 3202 962,163 02
National Forest Funds 3255
Federal Through Local 3280
Miscellaneous Federal Through State 3299 17 84
Total Federal Through State and Local 3200 962,180.86
State:
Flonda Education Finance Program (FEFP) 3310 135,228 647 00
Workforce Development 3315 2.201.116 00
Workforce Development Capitalization Incentive Grant 3316
Workforce Education Performance Incentives 3317 91,000 00
Adults with Disabilities 3318
CO&DS Withheld for Administrative Expenditure 3323 14,492 10
Diagnostic and Learning Resources Centers 3335
Sales Tax Distribution (s 212 20(6)(d)6.a, FS ) 3341
State Forest Funds 3342
State License Tax 3343 41,700 32
District Discretionary Lottery Funds 3344
Caregorical Programs:
Class Size Reduction Operating Funds 3355 31,328.048 .00
Florida School Recognition Funds 3361
Voluntary Prekindergarten Program 3371 516,930 26
Preschool Projects 3372
(ther State:
Reading Programs 3373
Full-Service Schools Program 3378
State Through Local 3380
Other Miscellaneous State Revenues 3399 306,526 98
Total State 3300 169,728 460 66
Local:
District School Taxes 3411 54,817.377.63
Tax Redemptions 3421
Payment in Lieu of Taxes 3422
Excess Fees 3423
Tution 3424
Lease Revenue 3425 12.075.00
Interest on Investments 3431 55,358 42
Gain on Sale of Investments 3432
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments 3433
Gifis. Grants and Bequests 3440
Interest Income - Leases 3445
Student Fees:
Adult General Education Course Fees 3401 13.950 00
Postsec Career Cert-Appl Tech Diploma Course Fees 3462 293,581 30
Continuing Workforce Education Course Fees 3463
Capital Improvement Fees 3464 14,047 20
Postsecondary Lab Fees 3465
Lifelong Learning Fees 3466
GED® Testing Fees 3467
Financial Aid Fees 3468 2819215
Other Student Fees 3469 264,552 14
Other Fees:
Preschool Program Fees 3471 3.014.01
Prekindergarten Early Intervention Fees 3472
School-Age Child Care Fees 3473 1.719.784 10
Other Schools. Courses and Classes Fees 3479
Miscellaneous Local:
Bus Fees 3491
Transportation Services Rendered for School Activities 3492
Sale of Junk 3493 34,607 75
Recept of Federal Indirect Cost Rate 3494 687,671 68
Other Miscellaneous Local Sources 3495 724416 89
Refunds of Prior Year's Expenditures 3497 6,117 20
Collections for Lost, Damaged and Sold Textbooks 3498
Receipt of Food Service Indirect Costs 3499 150,000 00
Total Local 3400 58,824.74547
Total Revenues 3000 230,521 .445.57
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND Exhibit K-1
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GENERAL FUND (Continued) FDOE Page 3
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 Fund 100
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Account
and CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES Number

Loans 3720
Sale of Capital Assets 3730
Loss Recoveries 3740 676.59
Transfers In:

From Debt Service Funds 3620

From Capital Projects Funds 3630 4.944,393.88

From Special Revenue Funds 3640

From Permanent Funds 3660

From Internal Service Funds 3670

From Enterprise Funds 3690

Total Transfers In 3600 4.944.393.88
Transfers Out: (Function 9700)

To Debt Service Funds 920

To Capital Projects Funds 930

To Special Revenue Funds 940 (370,577.35)

To Permanent Funds 960

To Internal Service Funds 970

To Enterprise Funds 990

Total Transfers Out 9700 (370,577.35)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 4,574,493.12
Net Change In Fund Balance 7.205,610.75
Fund Balance, July 1, 2020 2800 23,540,266.75
Adjustments to Fund Balance 2891
Ending Fund Balance:

Nonspendable Fund Balance 2710 08,221.13

Restricted Fund Balance 2720 6,231,157.01

Committed Fund Balance 2730 1,828.,045.30

Assigned Fund Balance 2740 782.854.85

Unassigned Fund Balance 2750 21,805,599.21

Total Fund Balances, June 30, 2021 2700 30,745,877.50




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - SPECIAL REVENUE Exhibit K-2
FUNDS - FOOD SERVICES FDOE Page 4
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 Fund 410
REVENUES ARG
Number
Federal :
Miscellaneous Federal Direct 3199
Federal Through State and Local:
School Lunch Reimbursement 3261 946,411.28
School Breakfast Reimbursement 3262 226.040.82
Afterschool Snack Reimbursement 3263 3,068.16
Child Care Food Program 3264 197.651.73
USDA-Donated Commodities 3265 743,166.44
Cash in Lieu of Donated Foods 3266
Summer Food Service Program 3267 10,776,711.78
Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program 3268
Other Food Services 3269 10.422.16
Federal Through Local 3280
Miscellaneous Federal Through State 3299 16,674.29
Total Federal Through State and Local 3200 12,920,146.66
State:
School Breakfast Supplement 3337 44.,772.00
School Lunch Supplement 3338 58,138.00
State Through Local 3380
Other Miscellaneous State Revenues 3399 5,220.00
Total State 3300 108,130.00
Local:
Interest on Investments 3431 17,124.12
Gain on Sale of Investments 3432
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments 3433
Gifts, Grants and Bequests 3440
Student Lunches 3451 82.469.74
Student Breakfasts 3452 33.684.83
Adult Breakfasts/Lunches 3453 21,585.50
Student and Adult & la Carte Fees 3454 1,793,838.21
Student Snacks 3455
Other Food Sales 3456
Other Miscellaneous Local Sources 3495 158,707.10
Refunds of Prior Year's Expenditures 3497
Total Local 3400 2,107,409.50
Total Revenues 3000 15,135.686.16




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - SPECIAL REVENUE Exhibit K-2
FUNDS - FOOD SERVICES (Continued) FDOE Page 5
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 Fund 410
EXPENDITURES (Functions 7600/9300) ’;i‘:;’:;‘:
Salaries 100
Employee Benefits 200
Purchased Services 300 10.881.735.82
Energy Services 400 416.62
Materials and Supplies 500 267.065.14
Capital Outlay 600 02.784 .86
Other 700 152.526.55
Other Capital Outlay (Function 9300) 600 788.767.32
Total Expenditures 12,183,296.31
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 2.952.389.85
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
and CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Loans 3720
Sale of Capital Assets 3730
Loss Recoveries 3740
Transfers In:

From General Fund 3610

From Debt Service Funds 3620

From Capital Projects Funds 3630

Interfund 3650

From Permanent Funds 3660

From Internal Service Funds 3670

From Enterprise Funds 3690

Total Transfers In 3600 0.00
Transfers Out: (Function 9700)

To General Fund 910

To Debt Service Funds 920

To Capital Projects Funds 930

Interfund 950

To Permanent Funds 960

To Internal Service Funds 970

To Enterprise Funds 950

Total Transfers Out 9700 0.00
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0.00
Net Change in Fund Balance 2.952.389.85
Fund Balance, July 1. 2020 2800 7.660,202.99
Adjustments to Fund Balance 2891
Ending Fund Balance:

Nonspendable Fund Balance 2710 85.763.63

Restricted Fund Balance 2720 10,526.829.21

Committed Fund Balance 2730

Assigned Fund Balance 2740

Unassigned Fund Balance 2750

Total Fund Balances, June 30, 2021 2700 10,612,592.84




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - SPECIAL REVENUE Exhibit K-3
FUNDS - OTHER FEDERAL PROGRAMS FDOE Page 6
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 Fund 420
ET—— Account
REVENUES e
Federal Direct:
Head Start 3130 2.960.714.41
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act 3170
Community Action Programs 3180
Reserve Officers Training Corps (ROTC) 3191 262.538.52
Pell Grants 3192 391.383.93
Miscellaneous Federal Direct 3199 355.156.85
Total Federal Direct 3100 3.969.793.71
Federal Through State and Local:
Career and Technical Education 3201 317.243.25
Medicaid 3202
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) 3230 6.225.242.18
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act:
Adult General Education 3221 244.748.28
English Literacy and Civics Education 3222
Adult Migrant Education 3223
Other WIOA Programs 3224
ESSA - Elementary and Secondary Education Act:
Elementary and Secondary Education Act - Title | 3240 3.935.060.71
Teacher and Principal Training and Recruiting - Title II. Part A 3225 761.249.00
Math and Science Partnerships - Title II. Part B 3226
Language Instruction - Title I11 3241 63.096.35
Twenty-First Century Schools - Title IV 3242 275.019.20
Federal Through Local 3280 279.073.72
Emergency Immigrant Education Program 3293
Miscellaneous Federal Through State 3299 3.606,964.29
Total Federal Through State and Local 3200 15.707.696.98
State:
State Through Local 3380
Other Miscellaneous State Revenues 3399
Total State 3300 0.00
Local:
Interest on Investments 3431
Gain on Sale of Investments 3432
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments 3433
Gifts. Grants and Bequests 3440
Adult General Education Course Fees 3461
Sale of Junk 3493
Other Miscellaneous Local Sources 3495
Refunds of Prior Year's Expenditures 3497
Total Local 3400 0.00
Total Revenues 3000 19.677.490.69
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OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Account
and CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES Number

From General Fund i6lo
From Debt Service Funds 3620
From Capital Projects Funds 3630
Interfund 1650
From Permanent Funds 1660
From Internal Semvice Funds 3670
From Enferprise Funds 3690
3600 70,5773

Total Transfers In
Tranyfers Out: (Function 9700

To the General Fund 1o
To Debt Service Funds

930

Interfund 950
To Permanent Funds 60
To Internal Service Funds 970
To Enterpnise Funds R
Total Transfers Out 9700 0
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 370,577 35
.....
2800
2491
Ending Fund Balance
| Nonspendable Fund Balance M0
Restricted Fund Balance 2720
Committe d Fund Balance 2730
Assiy Fund Balance 2740
| Unassigned Fund Balance 2750
Total Fund Balances, June 30, 2021 2700 0.0




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

CORONAVIRUS AID, RELIEF AND ECONOMIC SECURITY (CARES) ACT

CORONAVIRUS RESPONSE & RELIEF SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS (CRRSA) ACT RELIEF FUND Exhibit K4
AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN {ARP) RELIEF FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 DOE #age 8
Other CARES Act Other CRRSA AclL
Elem, & Sec. School Relief Fund Elem. & Sce. School Relief Fund Elem. & Sec. School
Rl E
EVENUES Account Emergency Relief (ESSER (Including GEER) Emergency Reliel (ESSER 11} (Including GEER [y Emergency Relief (ESSER 1y | O™er ARP Act Relicl Fund Totals
Number 441 442 443 444 445 446

Federal Direci:

Miscellaneous Federal Direct 3199 0,00

Total Federal Dircel. 3100 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9.00 0.00
Federal Through Stole and Local:

Educalion Stabilization Funds ~ K-12 3271 3701962.10 LU26RY9.TY 736400612 10.131.058.01

Education Siabilvation Eunds - Workforce am wwso sl A 2208078

Education Stabilizalion Funds - VPK 3273 §M \§§ \:\\ \\ \\\\\\ \\ 7] 0.00

Miscellaneous Federal Through Siate 3299 20020 24 26,020 24

Total Federal Through Sate and Lecal 3200 3.701.962.10 941,769 78 5.736.406.12 0,00 .40 0.00 10,380, 138,00
Local.

Qther Miscellancous Local Sources 3495 0.00

Tota] Local 3400 0.00 0.00 ©.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Tatal Revenucs 3000 3.701.962.10 941,762 78 3.736.406.12 0.00 0,00 Q.00 10,380,138 00




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY Exhibit K-4
STATEMENT OF -ﬂmf.mz.cmm EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND EALANCE - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY SCHOOL EMERGENCY RELIEF (ESSER) FIXOI: Page 9
Fur the Fiscal Year Ended Jun 2021 Fund 441
— 100 200 300 400 500 U0 T - ]
EXPENIMTURES Number Employee Purchased Linergy Maletials Capitel Totals
Salaries Benefits Servicgs Services and Supplies Qutlay Cther
Crrrent:
Instruction SO 2462 | EOXGET:T0 L 4642069 14 R 35,56y 34 2,155,385 91
Student Support Sefvices G100 5 hind .ot 6 180,262 66
Instructionsl Media Sapvices 6200 0.00
Instruclion and Cumeulum Devetopment Services G300 o0
6400 31376.05
6500 000
Tl 000
7200 130.528.63
1500 0.00
7410 OO
7500 Q00
2600 i)
TI00 10
7800 0.00
T900 1002 HH A3 1,002 408 85
Maintenanes of Flant o ! e
Administrative Technology Services 2200 0 (ny
WK [T
7 ) 7, " 7
i Consn 420 q.00
N 7/ A, AP A A0 (L7 coo
Totul Expenditures 146,61R 66 2.796.534.94 92,1619 59772 130, m~ 63 A0 96210
Excess (Deiemcy) of Revenes sver Expendltnres A A A AL 000
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES} Account
and CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES Numbw
3720
3730
T4t
From Genersl Fund 3610
From Dbt Service Funds A620
From Capitaj 'rojects Funds 1630
Tnetfund 1650
From Penmanent Funds 3660
From Internal Service Funds 670
From Enterprise Fumds 3690
3600 000
10
$20
930
50
B
To Inkimal Service Funds Y30
To Enterprise Furds bl
Total Transfers Ol 5700 ) K0
Total Other Finaacipg Sources {Uses) ML
.....
Fund Balance, July 1, 2026 2800
Adiustments o Fund Balanes 2891
Ending Fund Balunce
Nonsperklable Fusd Balance 2710
Restnicted Fuid Balance 2720
Commilted Fupd |3alance 30
Assigned Fund Balanee 21406
Unassigned Fund Balanee 2750
Total Fuil Balaneey, June 30, 2021 2700




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY Exhibit K-4

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - OTHER CARES ACT RELIEF FUND (iINCLUDING GEER) FIOE Page 10
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 202] Fuad H42
EXPENDITURES nﬁ.:?.,“ 10 _,..u_w_w..u _.s“ﬁi_ mu«om.., ™ m._.w. T — 1 - Totals
Salanies Benelits SBervices Senices and Supphies Outlay {ther
wrren
3000 15336064 2543426 HE 53900 43533 7 HPST) (3 1220810 303,982 64
5100 42.U78 3 1527477 [T 1735806
6200 000
TVices 4300 2213353 AU Y A7 320 4 29608 43
G400 ELIRE] 3T 341
£3500 Q0
100 0G0
Fa0 000
TR0 000
Tl 000
F500 000
T 000
TR 0.00
7800 M) 27
7900 0.00
8100 0.00
8200 000
2100 4.7 A bl A1 176 80
9300 \\\ \\\\\C\\\ \\\ \\\\ \§ \\\ 20917 s \\\\\ \k 2201758
175 986.50 32 594 .00 1L,71346 36781547 94i,769.78
) of Reveues aver A A A A \\ 7 T so
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Account
and CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES Number
0ans. 372
ite of 3T
3 34
iri 5
1A
620
1630
3650
3660
3670
36%0
3600 iy
To the Generad Fupd kil
To Deli Service Fumds 920
“api 930
und 950
“T'e 'ermanent Funds 860
970
SO0
E: 9700 o0
Totat Other Fieancing Sources (Uses) 0.00
Net Change in Fuad Balance 8O0
2800
Lkd)
2716
Restricted Fund Balance 2720
Committed I'und Batance 2730

Assigned 'und Ralance
Uassi ned Fund Balanes 2750
Total Fund Balances June 30, 2001 2700 (L]




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY Exbibit K4
ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ UES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - SPECEAL REVENUE FUNDS - ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY SCHOOL EMERGENCY RELIEF N (ESSER 1) FDOE Page 11
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3). 2021 Fuod 443
XPENDITU >H._=H-_ ¥ _wﬁ.a Eummi E.__Hv, zwmm...: Capital T Totals
Selanes enafits eSS Services and Suppliss Julay Other
Hive
5000 164 5452224 6]
a0\ ey b
S0 000
6300 | 203K 2000 00
B4 000
[nstruetion-Hulated Technology 6300 0.00
Board T 0.00
Genersl Administalivn 7200 000
300 0
7410 0.00
500 0.0
To0} 0.00
IT0 000
FROG 080
2900 18151 151
8100 000
200 000
Q160 000
300 \\m\ ~\\\\s \\\\\ \\\\\ \ \\\ \\\ \\\ 2 a0
1,191,120.72 444453 76 go0 | pool 0@ 0 A0G.12
ot Revean A A A \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\k\\v\\\\\\\\k\ T AT o
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Acoount
and CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES Number
Louns 3TN0
Salc 3730
usy
3810
From Dbt Bervice Fuhds 3620
| From Cupital Projects Funds 3630
Interfund 3630
From Permanent Fumds 660
1670
1699
A6(N 0.00
910
920
To Capital Projects Eunds 930
Interfund 250
To Prermanent Funds 960
To Intemal Servies Fupds 970
Lo Eplerprise Funds k)
Tetal Transfirs Out S 000
G.00
900
2800
2801
2710
Restnet ted Fund Balance 2720
Commitied Fupd 13alance 2730
Awsigned Fund Balaoge 0000000000000 1 7740
Lnoysigned Fund Balance 2750
Tolal Fund Balances, June 30, 3021 2700




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - DEBT SERVICE FUNDS FDOE Pags 16
For the Fiscal Year Fnded Junc 30, 2021 Fumds 200
Account SBLECOBI Special Act 14 and Motor YVehicle Instnet Other Debl e Stmudus Debt
REYENUES Number Runds Bonds 1011.15.F 8., Loans Ruvenue Bonds Bonds Service Tatals
210 210 230 240 150 90 palid
Fiederal:
Miscellaneous Federal Dircet 3198 0.0
Miscellaneous Federal Through State 32199 0.0
Starte:
LO&DS Withheld for SREACOBL Bonds 3122 TURSED 36 193.522.26
SBE/COBI Bond Interest 326 1314 1314
Sales Tax Distribution {s 212 200)d¥.a . F.8) 3343 22123 223,250 (4}
Orher Miscellancous State Revenues A3y 000
Totp) State Sources 3300 193,535 40 22325000 0,00 000 0.0¢ [R¢] 000 A36,78540
Local:
Distrivt Debt Servies Tuses 3412 0.00
County Tocul Sales Tax A8 L)
School District Local Sales Tax Iy Q.00
Tex Redemplivns 3421 000
I"avment in Lieu of Taxes 3412 4110
Lixcess Tees 3423 0.00
interest on Investments 343} 376542 254K 460047
Gain on Sale of Invesiments 3432 000
Net Increase {Decreass) in Fair Value of Invesiments 2433 D00
Gils, Grants and Bequests REE 1] .00}
Onher Miscellaneous Lovsl Sources 95 000
impact Fees 196 Q.00
Refunds of Prior Yepr's Uxpeodilunes 3447 Q00
‘Tl Local Sourees 3400 400 A,76547 0.00 1150 0.00 92503 [$1E0) 469047
Totat Revenees 3000 193 $35.40 22701542 000 0.00 0.00 925.03 .06 421,475 87
EXPENDITURES
Debr Service (Function $200;
Redemplion of Principal T [ELXLASLT 211300000
Iniercst it} 2113843 R2
Dugs and Fees 730 11,147.55
Otber [Xebl Service L 0.00
Total Expenditares 197,170.24 0.00 [{JL1) Q.00 0.00 406081213 060 4,257991.37
of Revenues Over Expendityres (364384} 22701542 Q00 0.00 {4,059 887.08) {3836 515.50)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Ao o o T e even B Tonis Do S Tt
210 220 230 240 250 250
3o [(CY
Premium on Salc of Bonds IW Q.00
Discount on Sale of Bonds (Funclion $29%) vl 000
Proceeds of Lease-Purchase Agreenients 730 [
'remiium on Lease- Purchuse Agneerents It .00
Discount un |.case-Purchase Agruements (Function $2949) RYZ Q.00
Loans 30 000
Proceeds of Forward Supply Contract 3760 0.00
Face Yalue of Refunding Bondy 315 0.00
3192 000
Discount on Retunding Bomls (Function 9294) 892 [IELH
Pavments to Refunded Bonds ow Agent (Funetion 329%) 761 300
Refunding [.ease-Iurchase 735 000
Premiwn on Refunding Lease-Purchase Agreements 3794 U0
Discount un Refund nts (Function 92499) 894 U0
Payments ko Relunded | ¢ase-Purchase Fscrow Agent (Funcuon 9399) 762 0u0
Transfers In
Erom {engral Fund el 400
Frem Lapiw) Projects Funds 1630 Suwi 12 H3 406081213
ulal Revenus Funds 1640 000
Inteitland 3650 0.80 ]
From Permapent unds 3660 [LNL]
From Interan] Service Fundy 3670 000
From ipterprse Funds 3690 .00
I'ota] Transfers In 3600 000 000 4.00 (LY 406081213 GO0 4060812 13

Transfers Our: [Furcrion $700;




To General Fund G0 {00
To Capilal Projects Fuods 930 [XLH
“To Special Revenue Funds 940 000
Interfund 930 000
o Permanent Fundy hlit] 000
To Intemal Service Funds pAit) 0.00
Lo Enterprise Funds 990 Q.00
Tutal Transfers Qut 700 000 000 .00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 000
Tetal Other Financing Sources (Usev) a.00 .00 000 0.00 0.00 406081213 000 4060812 43
Net Chaage in Fund Balances {3643 B4 2270542 .00 000 .00 S25.45 000 224.296.63
Surl Balance, July 1, 2020 2800 23.00KL 1oyl 34 E 15312932 2843752 37
Adjustments (o Fund Balances 2891 Q00
Fnding Fand Palance
Nonspendiable Fund Balance 2710 0.00
Restncted Fund Balance 2720 2143697 1895457 o 113465437 3,070,049.00
Committed Fund Balance 2730 0.00
Assigned Fund Balance 2740 0.00
Unassigned I'und Halance 2750 0.0
Total Fund Bulances, June 30 2021 23 21,456.97 1,893 93766 000 0uo 000 1154654 37 0.0 3070049 00




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY 13
« OMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - CAFITAL PROJECTS FUNDS FINOE Page 17

i i S A Accouisl Capial Onlay Sections 101114 and Publa ¥ ducation Ihstret. Capiial Outlay and Nomoted Caprtal Improsemen Other Capital ARRA Feonomic Stamulus
REVENUES Number Tond [asues (OORT Special Aot Bonds 101015, F S, Loans Capital Outlay (PECO) Bonds [ebt Service Program (CO&DS) Section 01T TULFS Voted Capital Improvement Fuand| Projects Capital Projects Titah
310 30 A% 340 3 o i 150 300 39
Federal
5 Federal Direct 1199 .00
Miscell Federal Through Sisie 1299 500
1321 TR 12860 T 6l
25 L6 47 6,040 47
(£} 4L 000
339 000
Classrooms Fust Program 92 000
SMART School Senal] County Assitance Progeam 395 0.00
Class Size Reduction Capital Outlay 96 0.00
Charter School Capital Cuithay Fuinding v SLOTL £7,07800
Other Stake Revonuss w L0221 L0021 10
Total Suate Sourcos 3300 0.0 000 0,00 000 0.0 T4 166 11 (1] v.00 1067299 1 .40 1B41.46521
| Laocal.
D Lol Capt In A A ey R AR RN 18,068,306 00
.A.BLHN__—HM”_”.HM.—H Tax .—“1"“ 121773017 _u._ﬂ.:.““_
matin T 2
Intersst o “H” ERILIC] Lo Ay PARTUNY] 8, ...””
Ciun on Sale of Invesimenis 1an 000
Net Increase | Decreass) in Faie Valug of Investments 43 0.00
Gifts, Gemitn arad Pegiests 440 000
wther Local Sources 1494 8357 1 435700
Impsct Fees 4% 0.00
Refunds of Proor Year's 49T 000
Toul |asal Sources 140 0o 0.00 0.0 0.00 371808 18,066,576 53 000 12300481 01 0.00 30,380 178 93
Tatsl Revenuss 3000 K 0.00 000 000 w00 TTTRA 9 18,066,976 83 0.00 3377780 11 000 120241 43
EXPENDITURES
| Capal Ovalay: (Fumciwn "800
’ Libeary ook 610 00
Auddiovisus) Material 620 0.00
Tuibdings and Froed Equipmen 630 037 % 13,359 310 18 13,846,147.74
Furniture, Fisusss and Fouipmant a0 41990 08 10232 1 900,577.24
Motor  chiclen (Inchuding Buses) 6t 000
Land 60 303,947 0 2,770,798 50 L8 e o M 94 44
sher Than Building &0 1.1 03 om0 A 284,598 13 LI
Remanteling and 40 £2763 63 LAz e 1,360 20847 4735775 83
Computsr Software b0 MRTN N AT ey
- reiem—— B O O S T NN A e
Chanes Sl Copia ot St T A NN NN ANNNNNNNNNNNNY P
Prmcipal 10 ()
Interest r.)] 000
Duce and Fees T Luek 67 106K 67
4!-_.“.?. i - 0.00 00 o.00 000 000 AT1H73 8 642431120 0.00 1K B4 THD 4§ 000 ﬁ.._r.!“_“.
Defickency) of Revenues Over Ky 000 .00 160 0o am 40040 14 11,642 26% 63 o i 3472002 47) LN CIMITIH0




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND DBALANCES - DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Fox the Fincal Your Endod Juss 30, 2071

Spocial Act 14 and Duanscy Othver Debe: ARKA Fomomue Stumsh Dubé.
REVENUES Honds - Loams Hemads. Sarvice Total
20 _ m o0
Federal:
Foders Diest

A Federal Through State
| Srare
| CODS Wiheld for SECOM! Bonde
| SUECOR! Bord bntres
| ol Ton Ditribution 4. 212206K00 0 F5)

Other

Total masen
| Lowal:

i

i
i

EEE EEbkikbbbbbesl ELEEE Lk | [

Account
Nusmber
3198
3322
e
—
139
300
M1z
My
3419
3421
340
M1
Fair Value of Irvestments 33
| lafta, Ciropin snd Boguests 4o
| Othas b Logal Sources 3485
Ionpast Fes 2496
Refmds of Frwce Years 39
Total Local Sowces 376542 0.00 0.00
Tl Revenmes 3000 | oisa 0.00 0.00
EXPENDITURES
 Debe Service (Funcrion 9001
Rademption of Frinaioe 70
berest 20
Do sod Foe 730
Other Debd Service 791
Total 0.00 000
12 Revenues Grver 227,01342 0.00 o8
P Special Act Motor Vehicle District
P = T e = -
lsuance of Hasds Ao 0.00
l Sale of Bondy ami Y
| Discount on Sale of Honds (Fanction 9299) L] 0,00
ofl prem— %0 090
Leasc-Purchass Agrosments I 0w
| Decount on Losse-Purchase Auresments (Function 9299) /] 0.00
Loam A 0.00
| Exoceods of Ferward Su 0.00
Face Vabus of g 0.00
Premsiore 3 0.00
|— Discomm ow Refunding Bonds (Punction 299). L., - 0.00
| Pavments to Refunded Bonds Eacrow Apest (Function $299) i | 0.00
Hetiding esse-Parchase Ageemens 788 0.00
F Lowse-Purchess Aprecments 3, S—-— 000
Discount on Refinding | i 9799) (8 0.00
| Payments to Refusled Losse-Purchass Exgrow Agent (Rmction 9299) - o
Transfers In.
Froen i Pand 1410 0.00
From Capital Projects Funds 4,060,812.13 |
+ 250 7
Intertumt | 3e%0 0,00
i Funds 3660 000

| Service Funds 3670 000
From Frterprise Fumds 3690 0,00
Totsl Tramsfors b 3600 0.00 4,060,812 13

Travefers Out: (Function 97001
To General Fumd. 910 000 |
To Capital Projacts P 930 o
| To Sewcial Revenne Funds 240 0,00
Itexfund 200 |
To Permascnt Punds P00 0,00 |
To Inteensl Service Funds __n 000
To K o 0.00
Tota) Tramfors Oss 9700 0.00 000 0 .00 |
b . e (1] 406081213 |
| Net Chatnge i Fund Bolances 3701343 LX) (1] 2242963 |
|Famel Fhalwoce, July |, 2020 2800 1 666,972 24 243,727 |
o Fond Halances i L

nding Fumd Balance.

Fumud Halasics 1710 0.00
cntriciod Fumd Halance g6 3,07,049.00 |
Commtted Fund Halance beil] — 000
Assigncd Frand Balznce I 000 |
Irsssigned Jund Halance % HF

L LB 307004900 |




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY Exhibit K-10
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS FIDXOE Page 21
Faor the Fiscal Yenr Ended June 30, 2021 Funds 700
INCOME OR (LOSS) Account Self-Insurance Self-Insurance Self-Insurance Self-Insurance Sell-Insurance Consortium Programs Other Internal Service Totals
Number 7 72 713 714 s 731 791
OPERATING REVENUES
481 0o |
3482 000
Premium Revenue 3484 : 2064720976
Other Operating Revenues RELY) 8750000 R£7.500.00
Total Operating Revenues 0.00 20,734 709.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 (.00 0.00 20.734.709.76
OPERATING EXPENSES (Function 9900)
Salanes 100 35 964.39 3596439
Employee Benefits 200 1.320.578.01 1,320,578 01
300 3532813 94 353281394
00 000
S00 40162 401 62
| Capital Outlay 600 000
Onher 700 2201YRTT 46 22019877 9%
Dieprecintion and Amortization Expense TR0 0.00
0.00 26,909,635 92 0.00 26,909,635 92
Operating Income (Loss) 0.00 16.174.926.16) 0.00 16,174,926 16)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest on Investients 3431 LAT7.00
Gain on Sale of Investiments 3432
Met Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investinents 3433
Gifts, OGrants and Beguests 3440 000 |
Other Miscellancous Local Sources 3495 1,331 384 98 1,334,384 98
Loss Recoveries 3740 0.00
Ciam on Dhsposition of Asscts 1780 000
720
TH0
BlO 000
1336261 98 000 1336261 98
Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers (4838664 18)] 0.00 0.00 (4838 664 |8)
TRANSFERS and
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Tranyfers In:
From General Fund 3610
Erom Debit Serviee Fund: 3620
From Capital Projects Funds 3630
1640
650
From Permanent Funds 3660
From Enterprise Funds 3600
Total Transfers In 3600 0.00 0.00 000 000 000
Tranyfers Out: (Function 9700)
T'o General Fund a0 000
1o Debt Service Funds 920 0.00
To Capual Projects Funds 930 000
Lo Special Revenue Funds 00K
Interfund 0.00
To Permunent Funds 260 0.00
X terprse Funds 990 0.00
Total Transfers Out 9700 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 .00 000 000
Change in Net Position 0,00 (4838 664 1K) 0.00 0.00 000 000 (4.838.664 18)
Net Position, July | 2020 2880 9,252 00 10629252 (0
Adjustments to Net Position 2896 1ty il i
Net Pos _ Jime 30, 2021 2780 5. 790 586 TR 5,790,386 73

LT 000, SEy




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND FIDUCIARY NET POSITION Exhibit K-11
SCHOOL INTERNAL FUNDS FDOE Page 22
June 30, 2021 Fund 891
ASSETS Account Beginning Balance Additions Deductions Ending Balance
Number July 1,2020 June 30, 2021
Cash 1110 4.560,728.72 164,784 75 4,725513.47
Investments 1160 0.00
Accounts Receivable. Net 1131 46,686.62 46,686.62
Interest Receivable on Investments 1170 0.00
Due From Budgetary Funds 1141 0.00
Due From Other Agencies 1220 0.00
Inventory 1150 0.00
Total Assets 4,560,728.72 211,471.37 0.00 4,772,200.09
LIABILITIES
Cash Overdraft 2125 0.00
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 2110 412.93 412.93
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 2170 208,326 .42 208,326 42 0.00
Accounts Payable 2120 237,370.52 312.561.75 237.370.52 312,561.75
Internal Accounts Payable 2290 411503178 4,115.031.78 0.00
Due to Budgetary Funds 2161 4.500,00 4,500.00
Total Liabilities 4,560,728 72 317.474.68 4,560,728.72 317.474.68
NET POSITION

Restricted for:

Other purposes W\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\“W\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\&

Individuals, organizations and other governments \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\&“&\\\\\\\\\\1\\\\\\\\\\\\\& 4.454,725.41
Total Net Position 2785 0.00 \\.\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\“\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\m 4.454.72541




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY

Exhubit K-12

SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM LIABILITIES FDOE Page 23
June 30, 2021 Fund 601
Acoount Governmental Activiti Business-Type Activiti Governmental Activitics - G I Activities - G | Activities - G tr ﬂ
Numbes Total Balance [1] Total Balance [1] Total Debt Principal Payments Principal Due Within One Year Debt Interest Payments Due Within One Year
June 30, 2021 June 30, 2021 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21 2021-22
Notes Payable 2310 0.00
Obligations Under Leases 2313 0.00
Bonds Payable
SBE/COBI Bonds Payable 2321 1,107 766 64 1,107.766.64 1AR.000 0 159,000 00
Districi Bonds Payable 22 0.00
2323 0.00
2324 0.00
2326 0.00
2320 1,107,766 64 0.00 1,107,766.64 ! 159,000.00 0.00 0.00
inbili 2330 16,561 479 40 16,561,479 .40
Lease-Purchasc Agreements Payable
Certificates of Participation (COPS) Poyable 2341 49,698,051 60 49,695.051.60
ified Zone Bonds Payable 2342 0.00
Qualificd School Construction Bonds (QSCB) Payable 2343 0.00
Build America Bonds (BAB) Pavable 2344 0.00
2349 0.00
2340 49,695.051.60 0.00 49,695,051.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2350 0.00
2360 21.962.874.00 21,962,874.00
2363 171, 18K.553 00 171,188,553.00
2370 0.00
2380 0.00
2390 0.00
260,515,724.64 0.00 260.515,724.64 148,000.00 159,000.00 0.00 0.00

n wnvu:n-:ug‘._-.Eaga.ﬁn_wu!_wa.nrﬁin-!oﬂil&uﬁu:ﬂﬂlvﬂﬁ_.__Enu....wnu._.:-n.:n.nhgaﬂnﬂuur.!-




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF CATEGORICAL PROGRAMS

REPORT OF EXPENDITURES AND AVAILABLE FUNDS Exhibit K-13
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 FDOE Page 24
CATEGORICAL PROGRAMS Grant Unexpended Returned Revenues Expenditures Flexibility [1] Unexpended
(Revenue Number) [Footnote] Number June 30, 2020 To FDOE 2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 June 30, 2021
Class Size Reduction Operating Funds (3355) 94740 31,328,048 00 31,328,048 00 0.00
Excellent Teaching Program (3363) 90570 “\\\-\\\\-\\\\.\\\\\-\“\\\ §\§“ 0.00
Florida Digital Classrooms (FEFP Earmark) 98250 49,072 68 106,845 00 81,711 28 L. 74,206.40
Florida School Recognition Funds (3361) 92040 70,858 99 49, \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ 21,758.74
Instructional Materials (FEFP Earmark) [2] 90880 1,416,107 89 2,234 444 00 1,509,939 10 2,140,612.79
Library Media (FEFP Earmark) [2] 90881 $2.688 50 129 469 00 147,937.74 3421976
Mental Health Assistance (FEFP Earmark) 90280 181,941 81 1 529 00 990 817 70 u\\\\\\\.\\\\.\\\«\\\\\s\\\\\ 197,653 11
Preschool Projects (3372) 97950 § 0.00
Research-Based Reading Instruction (FEFP Earmark) [3] 90800 584,200.65 1,238,287.00 1,505,341 47 317,206.18
Safe Schools (FEFP Earmark) [4] 90803 1,495,759.00 1,495,759 00 §§\ 0.00
Student Transportation (FEFP Earmark) 90830 7,089.439.00 7,089,439 00 000
I | Academic Instruction (FEFP Earmark) [3] 91280 31,62197 7,754,170.00 7,752,491 97 33,300.00
Teachers Classroom Supply Assistance (FEFP Earmark) 97580 555,289 00 555,289 00 \\N\\\\\\\\\\-\\\\\\\\ 0.00
Voluntary Prekindergarten - School Year Program (3371) 96440 169,193 55 516,930.26 653.821.72 _\\.k\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ 32,302.09
Voluntary Prekindergarten - § Program (3371) 96441 5,701.58 \\\.\\\\\\\\\\\§ 5,701.58

[1] Report the amount of funds transferred from each program to maintain board-specified academic classroom instruction and improve school safety

[2] Report the Library Media portion of the Instructional Materials allocation on the line "Library Media "
[3] Expenditures for designated low-performing elementary schools should be included in expenditures
[4] Combine all programs funded from the improve Safe Schools allocation on one line, "Safe Schools "




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF SELECTED SUBOBJECT EXPENDITURES Exhibit K-14
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 FDOE Page 25
Special Revenue Special Revenue Special Revenue - Federal
General Fund Food Services Other Federal Programs Education Stabilization Fund
Subobject 100 410 420 440 Total
UTILITIES AND ENERGY SERVICES EXPENDITURES:
Public Utility Services Other than Energy - All Functions 380 778,312.94 778312.94
Public Utility Services Other than Energy - Functions 7900 & 8100 380 778.312.94 ‘\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\k 778.312.94
Natural Gas - All Functions 411 177,678.50 177.678.56
Natural Gas - Functions 7900 & 8100 411 177.678.56 \\\\\\\,\\\\\\\.\\\\\\\\ 177,678.56
Bottled Gas - All Functions 421 8.110.83 18.50 8,129.33
Bottled Gas - Functions 7900 & 8100 421 7.910.95 §§ 7.910.95
Electricity - All Functions 430 5,012,929 44 - 5,012,929.44
Elcetricity - Functions 7900 & 8100 430 5,012.929.44 \\\\\\\\\\\\\\§ 5,012,929.44
Heating Oil - All Functions 440 0,00
Heating Oil - Functions 7900 & 8100 440 “§\\\\\\\\§“ 0.00
Gasoline - All Funetions 450 110,493 24 295.64 375.11 111,163.99
Gasoline - Functions 7900 & 8100 450 78,595.31 \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ 0.00 78,595.31
Diesel Fuel - All Funet 460 953,346 48 - 10248 953,448.96
Diesel Fuel - Functions 7900 & 8100 460 14,702.89 \\\\\\\\\§ 14,702.89
Other Energy Services - All Functions 490 0.00
Other Energy Services - Functions 7900 & 8100 490 §§ 0.00
Subtotal - Functions 7900 & 8100 6,070,130.09 0.00 0,00 0.00 6,070,130.09
Total - All Functions 7,040.871.49 416.62 375.11 0.00 7,041,663.22
ENERGY EXPENDITURES FOR STUDENT
TRANSPORTATION: (Function 7800 only)
Compressed Natural Gas 412 ”\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\§ 0.00
Liquefied Petroleum Gas 422 \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ 0.00
Gasoline 450 11.813.15 “\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ 11.813.15
Diesel Fuel 460 937.103.74 §§ 937,103.74
il and Grease 40 4 000
Total 948.916.89 §§ 0.00 0.00 948,916.89
Special Revenue Special Revenue - Federal
General Fund Other Federal Programs Education Stablilization Fund Capital Projects Funds
Subobject 100 420 440 IXX Total
EXPENDITURES FOR SCHOOL BUSES
AND SCHOOL BUS REPLACEMENTS:
Buses 651 0.00 0.00




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF SELECTED SUBOBJECT EXPENDITURES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Exhibit K-14
FDOE Page 26

Special Revenue - Federal

TECHNOLOGY-RELATED SUPPLIES AND Subobi 5 P o .
PURCHASED SERVICES ubobject General Fund Special Revenue Funds Education Stablilization Fund Capital Projects Funds Toral
100 410, 420 and 490 440 IXX
Noncapitalized Expenditures: N
Technology-Related Professional and Technical Services 319 & 0.00
7
Technology-Related Repairs and Maintenance 359 12,556.34 1.199.00 \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\&W 13,755.34
Technology-Related Rentals 369 4,077,080 86 1,015,246.42 1.600,104.13 \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ 6.692.431.41
Telephone and Other Data Communication Services 379 671.428.69 66,634.04 443,767.71 w\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\& 1,181.830.44
Other Technology-Related Purchased Services 399 84,486.99 18.038.79 700.00 ,\\v\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\.\\ 103,225.78
Technology-Related Materials and Supplies 5X9 439,872.03 171,518.10 34297 \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\N\M 611.733.10
Technology-Related Library Books 619 258.37 258.37
Noncapitalized Computer Hardware 644 1,392 346.76 348597220 84,085.58 671,620.26 5,634,624.80
Technology-Related Noncapitalized Fixtures and Equipment 649 92,191.09 241,848.17 3,406.46 8.086.01 345531.73
Noncapitalized Software 692 3.730.00 3,730.00
7
Miscellancous Technology-Related 799 § 0.00
Total 6,773,951.13 5,000,456.72 2,133,006.85 679.706.27 14,587.120.97
TECHNOLOGY-RELATED EQUIPMENT, COMPUTER HARDWARE i Special Revenue - Federal
AND SOFTWARE* Subobject General Fund Special Revenue Funds Education Stablilization Fund Capital Projects Funds Total
100 410, 420 and 490 440 3IXX
o Expendimres:
Capitalized Computer Hardware and Technology-Related
Infrastructure 643 271,288.76 58,064 93 7929552 64,748.84 473,398.05
Technology-Related Capitalized Fixtures and Equipment 648 41,336.84 73,588.98 185,590.00 31,241.87 331,757.69
Capitalized Software 691 417.412.00 333,237.50 750,649.50
Total 730,037.60 131,653.91 26488552 429.228.21 1,555,805.24

* Include (1) technology-related hardware: network equipment, servers, PCs, printers, and other peripherals and devices that exceed the district's capitalization threshold: and (2) technology software: purchased software used for educational or administrative purposes that exceed the

district's capitalization threshold




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF SELECTED SUBOBJECT EXPENDITURES

Exhibit K-14

For the Fiscal Y ear Ended June 30, 2021 FDOE Page 27
Special Revenue Special Revenue Special Revenue - Federal
Subobject General Fund Food Services Other Federal Programs Education Stabilization Fund
100 410 420 440 Total
SUBAWARDS FOR INDIRECT COST RATE:
Professional and Technical Services:
Subawards Under Subagreements - First $25,000 311 32931 78 183,833 72 99.460.59 316.226.09
Subawards Under Subagreements - In Excess of $25,000 312 5500000 212,543.25 303,930 40 571.473.65
Other Purchased Services
Subawards Under Subagr - First $25.000 391 25300 (1) 25.300.00
Subawards Under Subagreements - In Excess of $25.000 392 6,700 () 6,700.00
Special Revenue
Food Services
Subobject 410
FOOD SERVICE SUPPLIES SUBOBJECT
| Supplies 510 X,446 58
Food 370
Donated Foods 580 158,618 56
Special Revenue Special Revenue - Federal
General Fund Other Federal Programs Education Stabihzation Fund
Subobject 100 420 40 Total
TEACHER SALARIES
Basic Pri 102 and 103 (Function S100) 120 57,915 4R7.00 3,719,051 50 62,963,767 50
Basic Programs 101, 102 and 103 (Function 5100) 140 000
Basic Programs 101, 102 and 103 (Function 5100) 750 .00
Total Basic Program Salaries 57,915,487 00 1,329,229 .00 3,719,051.50 62,963,767 50
Other Programs 130 (ESOL) (Function 5100} 120 554,501.00 24,981 0D 10,633 590,115.00
Other Programs 130 (ESOL) (Function 5100) 140 0.00
Other Programs 130 (ESOL) (Function 5100) 750 0.00
Total Other Program Salaries 554.501.00 24.981.00 10,633 00 590.115.00
ESE Programs 111, 112, 113, 254 and 255 (Function 5200) 120 986000 1,823,138 (0 U67.853 00 41,870,851.00
ESE Programs | 112, 113, 254 and 255 (Function 5200) 140 0.00
ESE Programs 111, 112, 113, 254 and 255 (Function 5200) 750 0.00
Total ESE Program Salaries 39,079.860.00 1.823.138 00 967,853 .00 41,870,851.00
Career Program 300 (Function 5300) 120 1,410,548 00 163,528 00 39,005 00 1,613,081.00
Career Program 300 (Function 5300) 140 (.00
Career Program 300 (Function 5300) 750 0.00
Total Carcer Program Salaries 1. 410,548.00 163,528 00 39,005 00 1.613,081.00
TOTAL 98.960,396.00 3,340,876.00 4,736,542 50 107,037 814 50
Special Revenue Special Revenue - Federal
General Fund Other Federal Programs Education Stabilization Fund
TEXTBOOKS (used for classroom instruction) Subobject 100 420 440 Total
Textbooks (Function 5000) 520 1,513,050 68 8881311 1.601,926.79
Special Revenue Special Revenue - Federal
General Fund Other Federal Programs Education Stabilization Fund
EXCEPTIONAL STUDENT EDUCATION (ESE) EXPENDITURES Object 100 420 440 Total

Total Program Costs - Programs 111, 112, 113, 254 and 255

100 through 700

Functions 5000 through 8200, do not include function 7420) 36,733,665 00 17.802.545 04 | 64,740,751 00

Total Direct Costs - Programs 111, 112, 113, 254 and 255
0 700
(Function $000) 100:through 34,347 837 () K. 433 95| 00 ) RTS (00 S0.98 1,663 00
- 2.113,25 5

Student Support Services - Programs 111, 112, 113, 254 and 25 100 through 700 )

(Function 6100) 758 Rivd () 1,042 80500 643,597 0 2.445.26

- 5 255

Instruction Staff Support Services - Programs | 112, 113, 254 and 255 100 through 700

(Funetions 6200 through 6500) 624,288 d44d R T 00 77,897 00 6,147,002 10
| - 2 5. 255
Student Transportation Support Services - Programs 111, 112, 113, 254 and 100 through 700 )

(Function 7800) 10,470 00 HSKL 00 19.051.00




DISTRICT SCHOCGL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY

CATEGORICAL FLEXIBLE SPENDING AND OTHER DATA COLLECTION Fahibit K-14
For e Fiseal Year Ended June 30, 2021 FDOL Page 28
CATEGORICAL FLEXIBLE SPENDING - Asvount Student Rescarch-Based Reading instructional Supplemental Acadenie Sublotals
GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES Number Transportation Enstruction Materials & Library Mudia Instnection
1. Iristrugtion:
Basic 5100 400
Lxggptional 5200 [i2s.1]
Career Lducalion 3300 D.00
Adult General 5400 0.00
Frekinergunien 530 A, a0
Otber Instruetivn S50 0.00
Sublotal - Flexible Spending Instpuctional Expenditures 5000 0.00 000 DA 0.00 0.00
1. Schexol Safeiy: 0.00
Tatel Fiexible Spending Exponditures 0.00 0.00 G400 4,00 000
nnzmﬂwﬂﬂ__u_com”—ﬂ.zmh_rwﬂmmmvwnzourﬂwm ED wrﬂ__ﬁ.ﬂ_ Gﬁmw.nﬂnﬂmﬁ_su Florida Digsital Classrooms M.&ﬁa_.,.h_wﬁm”ﬁ Student Guarantesd Aliocation Totals
1. Instruction.
Hasic 5100 0.00
txceptional 5200 0.00
Caregr Education 3300 0.00
Adull General 3460 0.00
Prekinderparten 5500 0.00
Oilwr Instruction 3900 0.60
Subioial - Flesible Spending Instructional Expenditures 3000 [HRE] D00 0.00 0.00 0.00
I, Sched Safety: 0.00
Total Flexible Spending Expenditures [Eed] 060 000 LIXCH) ALt
MSTRIBUTIONS TO CHARTER SCHOOLS Fund Ihreet Payment (FEFPY Dhireet Payment (Non-F1EI'y M“.”M_- H.ﬁnﬁwno“wn_m-._u““ Amount Withheld for Payments and Services on Bchall Tota! Amount
(Charter sehool infrmation is used i federal reporiingy Numiber {Subohject 193) (Subobjects 394 & T94) (Subsbjecl 793) Adminisiralion of Charter Schoals
Expendiitires
General Fupd 100 RLOAILERLY \\\s\\\\\\\\\“ URO 10034
Specaal Hewsoue Hunds - Fou Servises w ), v
Specanl Revenue Funds - Other Feikeral Programs 420 §\§ s ERA LYY \\§§ 49,180.87
Special Rovenue Funds -_Lederal Education Stabilization Fuikd 440 7 §§ \§ A 0.00
Capital Projects Funds 3XX \\§\§\\§\ G 2.00
Totsl Charter School Distrlbutions 980,100.38 4918087 (00 .00 D00 102028125
LIFELONG LEARNING Amoust
iLifelong [caming expenditures are used in Federul reporting) Account Numiber
Fxpenditure.
General Fund 5900
Special Revenue Funds - Other Federal Proprams 5000
Special Revenue Funds - Federal liducation Stabilization Fund 5500
Tirtal 5900 283451008
MEDICAID EXPENDITURE REPORT Unexpended liamings Lixpenditures Unexpended
Mudrenid expersditures are wsed in federal reporting) June 10, 2020 2020-31 2020-2] Junc 30, 203
Lot x Y62 16T (02 59445 9 PRI
Fxpendittre Frogram o Activife:
Excepticnal Student Education LRI
School Nurses and Health Care Servicgs
Oceupational Therapy , Physical Therapy and {ther Therapy Services
LS¥ Professional and Technical Serviess TLHIO (K1
Gitted Student Fducation
Staff Traming and Cusmiculum Development R4l 03
Medicaid Administration and Billing Services INR6S 45
Swidem Services
Consuliants
12728 1H
959413 99
GENERAL FUND BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION Fund Amount
{ This informatien is used in stale reporting Number
Botesce Sheet Amount, June 30, 2027
Tolal Assets and Deferred Quillows of Resources 100 KRRT.)
Total Liabililics and Delomed Inflows off Resources 198 L6}




Exhibit K-15
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Management of the Santa Rosa County District School Board has prepared the following discussion
and analysis to provide an overview of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2021. The information contained in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is intended to
highlight significant transactions, events, and conditions, and should be considered in conjunction with
the District’s financial statements and notes to financial statements found immediately following the
MD&A.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Key financial highlights for the 2020-2021 fiscal year are as follows:

» As of June 30, 2021, the assets and deferred outflows of resources exceed the liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources by $188,740,025.

» The District’s net position increased by $8,069,419, which represents a 4.5 percent increase from
the prior fiscal year.

» General revenues total $291,334,954, or 94.1 percent of all revenues. Program specific revenues
in the form of charges for services, operating grants and contributions, and capital grants and
contributions total $18,257,725, or 5.9 percent of all revenues.

» Expenses total $301,522,801. Only $18,257,275 of these expenses was offset by program specific

charges, with the remainder paid from general revenues.

» At the end of the current fiscal year, the fund balance of the General Fund totals $30,745,878,
which is $7,205,611 more than the prior fiscal year balance. The combined assigned and
unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $22,588,454, or 9.8 percent of total General
Fund revenues.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements; 2)
fund financial statements; and 3) notes to financial statements. This report also includes supplementary

information intended to furnish additional details to support the basic financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements provide both short-term and long-term information about the
District’s overall financial condition in a manner similar to those of a private-sector business. The
statements include a statement of net position and a statement of activities that are designed to provide
consolidated financial information about the governmental activities of the District presented on the
accrual basis of accounting. The statement of net position provides information about the District’s
financial position, its assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows/outflows of resources, using an economic
resources measurement focus. Assets plus deferred outflows of resources, less liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources, equals net position, which is a measure of the District’s financial health. The
statement of activities presents information about the change in the District’s net position, the results of
operations, during the fiscal year. An increase or decrease in net position is an indication of whether the
District’s financial health is improving or deteriorating. This information should be evaluated in

conjunction with other nonfinancial factors, such as changes in the District’s property tax base, student
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enrollment, and the condition of the District’s capital assets, including its school buildings and

administrative facilities.
The government-wide statements present the District’s activities in the following categories:

» Governmental activities — This represents most of the District’s services, including its
educational programs such as basic, vocational, adult, and exceptional education. Support
functions such as transportation and administration are also included. Local property taxes and
the State’s education finance program provide most of the resources that support these activities.

» Component units — The District presents three separate legal entities in this report. The Learning
Academy, Inc., and Capstone Academy, LLC, charter schools, are legally separate organizations
and component units that are included in this report because they meet the criteria for inclusion
ptovided by generally accepted accounting principles. Financial information for these
component units is reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary
government.

» The Santa Rosa School Board Leasing Corporation (Leasing Corporation}, although also a legally
separate entity, was formed to facilitate financing for the acquisition of facilities and equipment
for the District. Due to the substantive economic relationship between the District and the
Leasing Corporation, the Leasing Corporation has been included as an integral part of the
primary government.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements are one of the components of the basic financial statements. A fund is a
grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. The District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements and prudent fiscal management. Certain funds are
established by law while others are created by legal agreements, such as bond covenants. Fund financial
statements provide more detailed information about the District’s financial activities, focusing on its most
significant or “major” funds rather than fund types. This is in contrast to the entity-wide perspective
contained in the government-wide statements. All of the District’s funds may be classified within one of

the broad categories discussed below.

Governmental Funds: Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions

reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, ualike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in assessing a government’s neat-term financing

requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s ncar-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison

between governmental funds and governmental activities.
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The governmental funds balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide detailed information about the District’s most significant funds. The District’s major
funds are the General Fund, the Special Revenue - Food Service Fund, the Special Revenue Fund — Other
Federal Programs Fund, the Special Revenue Fund — Federal Education Stabilization Fund, the Capital
Projects — Local Capital Improvement Fund, and the Capital Projects — Other Fund. Data from the other

governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for its governmental funds. A budgetary comparison
schedule has been provided for the General and major Special Revenue Funds to demonstrate compliance

with the budget.

Proprictary Funds: Proprietary funds may be established to account for activities in which a fee is
charged for services. Internal service funds are used to report activities that provide goods and services
to support the District’s other programs and functions through user chargers. The District uses an internal
service fund to account for the District’s self-insurance program. Since these services predominantly
benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, the Internal Service Fund has been included

within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds: Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee ot fiduciary capacity for the
benefit of external parties, such as student activity funds. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the
government-wide statements because the resources are not available to support the District’s own
programs. In its fiduciary capacity, the District is responsible for ensuring that the assets teported in

these funds are used only for their intended purposes.

The District uses custodial funds to account for resources of the District’s pre-tax flexible benefits plan
and the school internal funds which are used to account for moneys collected at the vatrious schools in
connection with school, student athletic, class, and club activities.

Notes to Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents required
supplementary information concerning the District’s other postemployment benefits and net pension
liabilities.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
As noted eatlier, net position over time may serve as a useful indication of a government’s financial health.

The following is a summary of the District’s net position as of June 30, 2021, compared to net position
as of June 30, 2020
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Governmental Activities

6-30-21 6-30-20 Increase {Decrease}
Current and Other Assets s 97,356,780 5 93,601,045 $ 3,755,735
Capital Assets 309,614,688 297,471,890 12,142,798
Total Assets 406,971,468 391,072,935 15,898,533
Deferred Outflows of Resources 62,280,530 53,788,888 8,491,642
Long-Term Liabilities 260,515,725 23,587,399 236,928,326
Other Liabilities 11,879,761 12,475,380 (595,619)
Total Liabilities 272,395,486 36,062,779 236,332,707
Deferred Inflows of Resources 8,116,487 15,848,438 {7,731,951)
Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 263,098,885 262,007,891 1,090,994
Restricted 55,171,711 52,794,356 2,377,355
Unrestricted (Deficit) {129,530,571} {134,131,641) 4,601,070
Total Net Position s 188,740,025 ) 180,670,606 S 8,069,419

The largest portion of the District’s net position is investment in capital assets {(e.g., land; buildings;

furniture, fixtures, and equipment), less any related debt still outstanding, The District uses these capital

assets to provide services to students; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending,

Although the investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, the resources used to repay the

debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these
Liabilities.

The restricted portion of the District’s net position represents resources that are subject to external

testrictions on how they may be used. The deficit unrestricted net position is the result, in part, of accruing

long-term liabilities (e.g., debt, compensated absences payable, net pension Hability, and other

postemployment benefit obligations). The unrestricted net position deficit decreased by $4,601,070 from

the prior fiscal year primarily as a result of the following:

>
>

Cash and cash equivalents increased $5,656,976.
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions increased $8,396,384.

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions decreased $7,313,711, which were offset by an

increase of $31,191,912 in the net pension hability.

Long-term debt decreased $2,396,880.
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The key elements of the changes in the District’s net position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021,
and June 30, 2020, are as follows:

Operating Results for the Fiscal Year Ended

Governmental Activities
Ll

Increase
&6-30-21 &-30-20 {Decrease)
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services 5 4,268,699 s 6,278,451 (2,009,752)
Operating Grants and Contributions 13,006,382 9,216,526 3,789,856
Capital Grants and Contributions 9Rr2,194 1,122,768 {(141,574)
General Revenues:
Property Taxes, Levied for QOperational Purposes 54,817,378 52,197,174 2,620,204
Property Taxes, Levied for Capital Projects 18,065,506 15,573,830 2,491,676
Local Sales Taxes 12,177,574 10,194,669 1,982,905
Grants and Contributions Not Restricted
to Specific Programs 203,052,280 184,363,530 18,688,750
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 145,512 1,558,000 {1,412,488)
Miscellaneous 3,076,705 3,626,207 {549,502)
Total Revenues 309,592,229 284,132,155 25,460,074
Functions/Program Expenses:
instruction s 168,517,481 -3 171,938,544 (32,421,063}
Student Support Services 12,255,750 14,781,451 (2,525,701}
Instructional Media Services 2,684,269 2,806,738 (122.,469)
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 8,258,318 8,229,054 29,264
Instructional Staff Training Services 2,574,230 4,557,038 {1,982,808)
Instruction Related Technology 4,704,690 4,804,614 (99,924)
Board 714,860 988,523 (273,663)
General Administration 1,690,480 1,477,134 213,346
School Administration 16,656,804 17,630,614 {(873,810Q)
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 2,246,760 136,875 2,109,885
Fiscal Services 1,971,006 1,408,879 562,127
Food Services 11,509,464 10,720,108 789,356
Central Services 8,561,369 3,212,798 5,348,571
Student Transportation Services 13,713,540 14,050,533 {336,993)
Operation of Plant 21,214,968 12,885,514 8,429,454
Maintenance of Plant 5,810,870 6,794,522 (2983,652)
Administrative Technology Services 2,790,023 2,625,718 164,305
Community Services 2,617,243 3,104,802 {(487.559)
Unallocated Interest on Long-Term Debt 1,931,022 1,823,307 107,715
Unallocated Depreciation Expense 10,999,654 10,152,401 247,253
Total Functions/Program Expenses 201,522,801 294,129,167 7,393,634
Change in Net Position 8,069,429 (9,997,012} 18,066,441
Net Pasition - Beginning 180,670,527 190,667,618 (9,997,021}
Net Position - Beginning 180,670,597 190,667,618 {9,997,021)
Net Postion - Ending S 188,740,025 S 180,670,606 ) 3,069,418

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs represent 65.6 percent of total governmental
revenues in the 2020-21 fiscal year and increased by $18,688,750 or 10.1 percent from the 2019-2020
fiscal year, primarily due to an increase in Florida Education Finance Program (FEFP) funding and Class
Size Reduction. This funding increase is primarily due to additional student FIE. The FEFP formula
utilizes student enroliment data and is designed to maintain equity in funding across all Florida school
districts, taking into consideration the District’s funding ability based on the local property tax base.
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Instruction expenses represent 55.9 percent of total governmental expenditures for the 2020-21 fiscal
year. Instruction expenses decreased by $3,421,063, or 2.0 percent, from the 2019-20 fiscal year, primarily

due to a decrease in purchased services.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS
Governmental Funds

The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District’s financing
requirements. Specifically, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for discretionary use as it represents the portion of fund balance that has not been
limited to a particular purpose by an external party, the District, or a group or individual delegated

authority by the Board to assign resources for particular purposes.

The total fund balances of governmental funds increased by $9,190,019 during the fiscal year to
$79,686,432 at June 30, 2021. Of this amount, $21,805,599, or 27 percent, is unassigned fund balance,
which is available for spending at the District’s discretion. The remainder of the fund balance is
nonspendable, restricted, committed, or assigned to indicate that 1) $183,985 is not in spendable form,
2) $55,085,948 is restricted for particular purposes, 3) $1,828,045 is committed for particular purposes,
and 4) $782,855 is assigned for particular purposes.

In the governmental funds, revenues by source for the 2020-21 fiscal year were as follows:

Revenues by Source

2';)0;;; Federal Direct
bln 1.62% Federal Through
State
12.96%

State
55.81%

The largest revenue source is the State of Florida. Revenues from State sources for current operations
are primarily received through the FEFP funding formula, Class Size Reduction, Workforce
Development, and Voluntary Pre-K funds. State revenues increased by $3,381,506, or 2.0 percent,

primarily due to increases in FEFP funding.

Major Governmental Funds
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The General Fund is the District’s chief operating fund. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned
fund balance is $21,805,599, while the total fund balance is $30,745,878. As a measure of the General
Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare the total assigned and unassigned fund balances to General
Fund total revenues. The total assigned and unassigned fund balance is 9.8 percent of total General Fund
tevenues, while total fund balance represents 13.3 percent of total General Fund revenues. Total fund
balance increased by $7,205,611. The key factors impacting the change in fund balance were moving the
committed fund balance to unassigned, coding staff to CARES, and cutting District budgets.

The Special Revenue — Food Service Fund has a total fund balance of $10,612,593, of which substantially
all is restricted for allowable purposes of food service. The fund balance increased by $2,952,390, or 38.5
percent, as food setvice revenues continued to outpace expenditures. Of the total fund balance, $262,214

has been encumbered for food service activities.

The Special Revenue — Other Federal Programs Fund accouats for the financial resources of certain
Federal grant programs. This fund has revenue of $19,677,491 which is an increase of $4,522,995 over
the prior fiscal year mainly due to the receipt of funds from the Cares Act. Current year expenditures
were $20,048,068 which was an increase of $4,621,432 compared to the prior fiscal year due to increases
in salary expense, software rentals, and enhanced cleaning expense. Because grant revenues are not

recognized until expenditures are incurred, this fund generally does not accumulate a fund balance.

The Special Revenue — Federal Education Stabilizaton Fund accounts for emergency relief funds to assist

in the Coronavirus recovery efforts. The District received $10,380,138 in revenues.

The Capital Projects — Local Capital Improvement Fund has a total fund balance of §7,136,476, which is
restricted for the acquisition, construction, and maintenance of capital assets. The fund balance increased
by $3,276,018, or 84.9 percent, during the 2020-21 fiscal year, pritnarily due to an increase in District
capital improvement tax collections. Of the total fund balance, §535,014 has been encumbered for

specific projects.

The Capital Projects — Other Fund has a total fund balance of $25,769,394, of which substandally all is
restricted for allowable purposes of various capital funding sources. The fund balance decreased by
$4,868,306, or 15.9 percent, primarily due to the building and fixed equipment expenses at Fast Bay K-8
School. Of the total fund balance, $3,883,042 has been encumbered for specific projects.

Proprietary Fund

The total net position of the Internal Service Fund totaled $5,790,587 at June 30, 2021, of which
$2,000,000 is restricted for a State required safe harbor reserve. The total net position decreased by
$4.838,665, or 45.5 percent, during the 2020-21 fiscal year primarily due to an increase in claims expense.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS
During the 2020-21 fiscal year, the District amended its General Fund budget several times, which

resulted in an increase in total budgeted revenues of $216,727, or (.1 percent. At the same time, final
budgeted expenditures are less than the original budgeted amounts by $11,711,270, or 4.7 percent.
Significant budget revisions occurred primarily from changes in estimated State funding levels, purchased

services increase, salary and benefit changes, and reductions in District budgets.
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Actual revenues are in line with the final budgeted amounts while actual expenditures are $9,670,675, or
4.1 percent, less than final budget amounts. Actual expenditures are less in 2020-2021 primarily due to
Restricted/Categorical projects and School Based budgets having balances left in appropriations at fiscal
vear-end. Restricted/Categorical projects had a balance of §6,075,288, and School Based budgets had a
balance of $1,828,045 at year-end. Encumbrances, year-end adjusements, and projects that cross fiscal
years make up the majority of the remaining balance. The actual ending fund balance exceeded the
estimated fund balance contained in the final amended budget by $9,438,004, primarily due to the
encumbrances and the unspent appropriations from the Restricted/Categorical projects and School

Based budget balances folding back into fund balance at year-end.
CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-TERM DEBT
Capital Assets

The District’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of June 30, 2021, amounts to
$309,614,688 {net of accumulated depreciation). 'This investment in capital assets includes land; land
improvements; construction in progress; imptovements other than buildings; buildings and fixed
equipment; furniture, fixtures, and equipment; motor vehicles; and audio visual materials and computer

software.
Major capital asset events included the following:

» During the current fiscal year, the District completed fieldhouse construction.

» At June 30, 2021, construction in progress includes HVAC/energy upgrades and construction
of two new schools.

Additional information on the District’s capiral assets can be found in Notes LF.4., IILC,, and IILF. to

the financial statements.

Long-Term Debt
At June 30, 2021, the District has total long-term debt outstanding of $50,802,819, composed of

$1,107,767 of bonds payable and $49,695,052 of certificates of participation payable. During the current
fiscal year, retirement of debt was $2,396,879.

Additional information on the District’s long-term debt can be found in Notes LF.6. and II1.H. to the

financial statements.

OTHER MATTERS OF SIGNIFICANCE

The District is building a new K-8 school in the north end of Santa Rosa County. A Series 2021 Certificate
of Participation in the amount of $12,505,000 was secured in July 2021 to fund the building of this new

school.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances for all those with
an interest in the District’s finances. Questions concerning information provided in the MD&A or other
required supplementary information, and financial statements and notes thereto, or requests for
additional information should be addressed to the Assistant Superintendent for Finance, Santa Rosa
County District School Board, 5086 Canal Street, Milton, Florida 32570.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2021
Primary Government Component Unity
Account Total Nonmajor
Num ber Governmental Activities Total Ci Units
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 110 91.717.536 57 91.717,536.57 303 95300
Investments 1160 2145697 2145697 04
Taxes Recaivable. Net 1120 000 [0
Accounts Recervable, Net 131 454030 4,540 30 1377600
Inferest Recervable on Investments 170 .00 I
Due From Other Agencies 220 542924022 542024932 4] 958 00
Due From Insurer 180 0.00 0w
Deposits b 1210 .00
Internal Halances 0 (K1
Cash with Fiscal Service Agents 14 000
Section 101113, F §. Loan Proceeds 4 000
| lLeascs Receivable 425 000
| Inventory 150 163,996 56 183 796,56
| Prepaid liems 1230 0.00
Long-Term Investments 1450 0.0
Prepaid Insurance Costs 1430 0.00
Other Posiemplovment Benefits Asset 1410 000
Pengon Asset 1415 00
Capital Assets
Land 1310 18,722,636 60 183,000 00
Land nts - Nondepreciable 1315 ERE] [l
Construction in ress 1360 34195493 61 L1985 0o
Nondeprecuable Capital Assets 640,649 883 3 6l 64 185 0000 00
Improvements Other Than Huidings 1320 3 MIETETE 31343675 T3 332 1400 00
Less Accumulated Depreciation 1329 (20,691 857 49) (20,691 857 49) (263 854 1))
Buildings and Fixed Equapment 1330 398392077 ) 398 192 077 R 1363 234 (K}
Less Accumulated Depreciation 1339 (167338353 30) (167 335 353 30) (210,000 003
Furniture. Fixtures and Equipment 1340 18605616 12 18605616 12 302 456 00
Less Accumulated Depreciation 1349 { ). 718.58) {12.370,718 58) (277.6A7.00)
Motor Vehicles 1350 345286 88 21.800.00
Less Accumulated Depreciation 359 ___ (2268555 06) 115.885.00)
Property Under Leases 3 0.00 0,00
Less Accumulated A Ejy] 000
Audiovisual Materials 381 [0
Less Accumulated [ tion 13RE 00 0 00
Computer Software 1382 2238 98600 2.238.986 00 23 500 00
Less Accumulated Amortization 1389 A02.053 54) (2,402,053 .54) (22 B4T.000)
Deprecinble Capital Assets. Net 964804 56 248.964.804 36 1,154,047 00
Total Capital Asscts 309,614,658 09 309,614,688 0% 1,339,047 00
Total Assets 406 971.467.71 0697146771 1,700,734 00
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Accumulated Decrease in Fair Value of Hedging Derivatives 1910 .00 0un
Net Carrving Amount of Debt Refunding 1920 688421 21 688421 21 000
Pension 1940 60.093.93] ) w0093 931 00 [
Other Postemployment Benefits 1950 1498, 1 7R 00 1,498,178 00 [}
Asset Retirement Obligation 1960 000 D
Total Deferred Outflows of 62.280.530.21 62.280.530.21 0,00
LIABILITIES
Cash Overdmaft 2125 0.00 (L)
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 2110 472,454 85 3432 00
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 2170 32.479.09 )
Accourits Payable 2120 2.967.14743 412300
Sales Tax Pavable 260 0.00 0o
Current Notes Payable 2350 0.00 [l
Accrued Interest Pavable 210 000 [INTT)
Deposts Pavabie 2220 381.690.07 IR1.690.07 [IXTT]
| Duc to Other Agencies 230 326482 40 326482 40 U8 243 00
D 1o Fiscal Agent 240 00 [T
| Pension Liabality 15 [T .00
Other Postemplovment Benefits Liability 16 000 0.00
Judgments Payable 30 000 DX
Construction Contracts Payable 40 000 D.00
| Construction Contracts Pavable - Retamed Percentage 50 1.0960. 33632 1,090 236 22 0.00
| Estimated Unpind Claims - Self-Insurance Program 271 2 149.000 () 2,149,000 00 0.0
Estmated Liability for Claims Adjustment 0.00 nm
Estimated Limbility for Arbitrage Rebate 0.00 nim
Uneamed Revenues 2410 4460 270 RS 446037085 (L{L1)
Long-Term Liabilities
Portion Diue Within One Year
Notes Payable 110 0
Obligations Upder Leases 15 0,00 [0
Bonds Pavable 2320 159,000,001 159,000, 05 [
Liability for Compensated Absences 2330 5924 TR5 13 4,785 13 T7.604 (X1
_casc-Purchase A Pavable 2340 20640 000 DO 20640, 000 00 )00
stimated Liability for Long-Term Claims 2350 000 0.0
Net Other Postemnployment Henefits Obligation 2360 000 D)
Net Pension Liahility 2365 000 fo0
Estimated PECO Advance Pavable 2310 0.0 o0
Othier Long-Term Liabilitics 2380 .00 0.00
Derivative Instrument 3% 0.00 o0
Estimated Luability for Arbitrage Rebate 2280 000 i
Due Within One Year B.123.785.13 812378513 142 661,00
Fortion Due After (ne Year
Notes Pavable 0,00
Obliganons Under Leases 000
Tonds Pavable 48 T il

Liability for Compensated Absences

10,636,694 77

Lease-Purchase Agreements Payable 2340 47658081 60 47 555,151 60
Esumaied Liability for Long-Term Clams 2350 000 0,00
Net Other Postemployment Benefits Obligation 2360 21.962 K74 00 21.962.874 00 0.0
Net Pension Liability 2365 171 188 353 0 171,188,553 00 0.
Estimated PECO Advance Pavable 2370 000 .00
Other Long-Term Liabilities 2380 000 [
Denivative Instrument 2390 [ 100
Estimated Liahility for Arbitrage Rebate 2280 .00 000
Due in More than One Year 252.391.939.51 91.939.51 682 330,00
| Total Long-Term Liabilitics 260,515,724 64 26051572464 #25221 00
Total Lishilities T72.395.485 53 272395485 55 931.019.00
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
| Accumulated Increase in Fair Value of Hedging Derivatives 2610 0.00 [
Defieit Net Carrying Amount of Debt Refunding 2620 0.00 .00
Deferred Revenue 2630 000 0.0
Pension 2640 529220500 000
Other Postemplovment Benefits 2630 283319200 2.824.192.00
Total Deferred Inflows of 8116487 00 8.116487 00
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 7 263 048 885 22 263098888 22 49 K37 00
Rextricted For
Categorical Carrvover Programs 2780 623115701 623115701 A
Food Service X780 It 2 kd 10,612,592 84 Ly
Debt Service 17RO 3070, 04900 3,070,040 00 [
Cagutal Projects THO 35287912 68 3528701264 000
Other Purposes. 2780 0000 10,500 00
L 2790 {129.530.571 ) (129,530,571 34) 209388 (1)
Tatal Net Position 188.740,025 37 188,740,025 37 769.715.10
The notes inancial statements are an integral part of this statement

ESE 145




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Exhibit

B-2

Page 3

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
Operating Capital Primary Government
Account Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Component
FUNCTIONS Number Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Total Units
CGovernmental Activities:
Instruction 5000 168,517,480.60 603,280 60 (167.914,191 00) (67.914,191.00) Y0
Student Support Services 6100 12,255.750.17 (12,255.750.17) (12,255,750.17) \N\\\\\Q\\\‘\\\\
Instructional Media Services 6200 2,684,268 62 (2,684,268 62) (2,684,268 62) LA/ s
Instruction and Curniculum Development Services 6300 8,258.318 14 (8,258 318 14) (8.258.318 14) L /s
Instructional Staff Traiming Services 6400 2,574,229.89 (2.574.229 89) (2,574,229 89) L0 \§
Instruction-Related Technology 6500 4,704,690 08 (4,704,690 08) (4.704.690 08) A7 20700 77 \\\\\~
Board 7100 (714,859.85) (714,859 85) P77 \§
General Administration 7200 (1,690,479 66) (1.690,479.66) V220000007 §
School Administration 7300 (16,656,803 54) (16,656,803 54) 000007077
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7400 14,047 20 982,193 61 (1,250,519.65) (1.250,519.65) P77 70077 \§
Fiscal Services 7500 (1.971,005.76) (1.971,005.76) P70 i s/
Food Services 7600 1,931,578 28 13,006,382 37 3,428,496 61 342840661 P
Central Services 7700 (8,561,369 20) (8.561,369.20) V777777 §.\
Student Transportation Services 7800 (13.713.539.97) (13,713,539.97) W07 o
Operation of Plant 7900 (21,314,968 49) (21,314,968.49) \§\§.\
Maintenance of Plant 8100 (5,810,869 74) (810860 74) LI 000
Administrative Technology Services 8200 (2,790,022 78) (2,790,022 78) \\§
Community Services 9100 1,719.784.10 (897,459 14) (897.459 1) [/ /i
Interest on Long-Term Debt 9200 (1.931.02241) (L.931.02241) Pz zss s
Unallocated Depreciation/Amortization Expense \\\§\§\\§ \\\\\\V\. \% 7 (10,999,654.20) (10,999,654 20) ““§\\\\\\\\\-
Total Governmental Activities 4.268.699 18 13,006,382 37 982,193 61 (283,265,525 68) (283,265,525 68) YU ATA y /s i
Business-type Activities:
Self-Insurance Consortium Vs N, 000 s
Daycare Operations \\.\\\.\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ /] 0.00 .§\\§\
Other Business-Type Activity §\ \\\\\\ A 0.00 \§§W\\
Total Business-Type Activities 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 G, 000 P
Total Primary Government 301,522,800 84 1,268,699 18 13,006,382 37 982,193 61 38 265,525 68) (283,265,525 68) UM/ i i ey,
Component Units:
Mayor Component Unit Name 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 \\&\\\\\.\\\\\.\\\\\\N\“\\ »\\ §\ 0.00
Major Component Unit Name 0.00 000 0 00 000 \\\\\\ \\ A 0.00
“Total Nonmajor Component Units 1337.927.00 000 52.474.00 61658 00 [ \§ {1,223.795.00)
Total Component Units 1,337,927 00 0.00 52.474.00 61,658 00 [/ s s r s \\\&. (1,223,795.00)

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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General Revenues:

Taxes:
Property Taxes, Levied for Operational Purposes
Property Taxes, Levied for Debt Service
Property Taxes, Levied for Capital Projects
Local Sales Taxes

Grants and Contributions Not Restricted to Speaific Programs

Investment Earmings
Miscellaneous
Special liems
Extraordinary Items
Transfers

Total General Revenues, Special ltems, Extraordinary Items and Transfers

Change in Net Position
Net Position, July 1, 2020
Adjustments to Net Position
Net Position, June 30, 2021

54,817,377 63 54.817,377.63

$26,732.00

0.00
18,065,506.00 18,065,506 00
12,177.574.17 12,177,574.17
203,052 280 08 203,052,280 08 )
145,511 76 145,511.76 0.00
3.076.704 66 3,076,704.66 000
0.00 000
0.00 000
0.00 0.00
291,334,954 30 291,334,954 30 1.288,065.00
8,069,428 62 8,069,428.62 64,270.00
180,670,596.75 180,670,596.75 705,445 00
0.00 000
188,740,025 37 188,740,025.37 769.715.00




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2021

Exhibit C-1
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Food Other Federal Federal Education Nonvoted Capital
Account General Services Programs Stabilization Fund Improvement Fund
Number 100 410 420 440 370
ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1110 31,624,596.74 10,544,605 29 (993,079 95) (522.510.11) 7.580.073 77
Investments 1160 .06 0,00 (LK) 000 [T
Taxes Receivable. Net 1120 0.00 1100 0.0 11,00 (104}
Accounts Receivable. Net 1131 4.500.00 40,30 000 10,00 000
Interest Receivable on Investments 1170 .00 (10 000 000 000
Due From Other Agencies 1220 656.441.96 654.336.08 1.562.390.06 618469 02 32.714.95
Due From Budgetary Funds (BE1] (.00 (100 1 (M) 000 11,00
Due From Insurer 1180 0.00 0 1101 {1,001 11,01
| Deposits Receivable 1210 0,00 (.00 1,04} {104} (LX)
Due From Internal Funds 1142 (.00 100 .00 D.0H) (XL
Cash with Fiscal/Service Agents 1114 .00 0,00 000 1 00 040
Inventory 1150 98,232 93 85,763 63 (.00 11 (M) X0
Prepaid ltems 1230 .00 000 100 1 04} (0
Long-Term Investments 1460 0.00 0.00 000 .00 000
Total Assets 32.383.771 63 11,284,745 30 56931011 95,958 91 7.612.788 72
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Accumulated Decrease in Fair Value of Hedging Derivatives 1910 0.00 0.00 01.060 [ (XL
Total Deferred OQutflows of Resources 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 000
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 32,383,771 63 11,284.745.30 $69.310.11 95.958 91 7612788 72
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Cash Overdraft 2125 000 100 X1 10001 000
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 2110 403.213.39 1.323 81 57.817.62 10,061 77 0.00
Pavroll Deductions and Withholdings 2170 3,834 35 26,80 28.617.94 [IXI1] 01
Accounts Pavable 2120 1.074,610 96 442.287.2 159,621 .65 85.897 14 435,205 45
Sales Tax Pavable 2260 0,00 0,00 000 [T 100
Current Notes Pavable 2250 0.00 0.00 0,00 1,00 0.00
Accrued Interest Pavable 2210 [ .00 1.010) .00 0K
Deposits Payable 2220 153,175 43 228,514 64 1100 .00 [
Due to Other Agencies 2230 3,060.00 000 2 90 006 000
Due to Budgetary Funds 2161 10,00 01.00) [ 11.00) [T
Due to Internal Funds 2162 0.00 10,0 000 1 00 [
Due 10 Fiscal Agent 2240 [ 000 000 000 000
Pension Liability 2115 0,00 (X0 0.00 000 0
Other Postemployment Benefits Liability 2116 (100 1000 0.00 1100 (1)
Judgments Pavable 2130 000 0060 006 000 [0
Construcuon Contracis Pavable 2140 0.00 0.00 (100 1,00 [IXE1]
Construction Contracts Pavable - Retained Percentage 2150 000 000 0,00 0,00 41,017 58
Matured Bonds Pavable 2180 000 0,00 000 000 000
Matured Interest Pavable 2190 .00 1.00 0.00 .00 [
Unearned Revenue 2410 00 0.00 000 000 000
Unavailable Revenue 2410 000 .00 (.01 000 .00
Total Liabilities 1.637.894.13 672,152.46 569.310.11 95,958 91 47631303
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Accumulated Increase in Fair Value of Hedging Denvatives 2610 0.00 (. () 0.00 (XL 000
Deferred Revenues 2630 0.00 0.00 0,00 [l 11010
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 0.00 0.00 0.00 .00 0.00
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable.
Inventony 2711 v8.221.13 £5.763.63 1,00 0,00 (i
Prepaid Amounts 2712 0.00 0.00 101 .00 1) (M1
Permanent Fund Principal 2713 000 () 000 0,00 [
Other Not in Spendable Form 2719 [ .00 11001 (.00 0.0
Total Nonspendable Fund Balances 2710 98.221.13 B5.763.63 (.00 0,00 .00
Resiicied for
Economic Stabilization 2721 0.00 0.00 016 0,00 100
Federal Required Carrvover Programs 2722 0,00 000 000 000 [IX1)
State Required Carrvover Programs 2723 6.231.157.01 1001 0,061 0,00
Local Sales Tax and Other Tax Levy 2724 0.00 11,00 (.00 0.00 1014}
Debt Service 2725 01,00 000 0.0 .00 (1.0
Capital Projects 2726 0,00 0,00 000 000 7.136.475 69
Restricted for Food Service 2729 0.00 10,526,829 21 000 {104} 10,00
Resinicted for 27129 0 001 () () 000 (100} [
Toral Restricted Fund Balances 2720 6.231.157.01 10,526,829 21 0.00 0.00 7.136.475.69
Committed 10
Economic Stabilization 2731 000 0 () 0.0 110K (.00
Contractual Agreements 2732 0.00 .04 0100 .04 000
Committed for Board Approved Carrvover 2739 1,828.045 30 000 0100 LK1 000
[ d for 2739 (1 001 17.00) 0.0 0.00 1100
Total Commiied I-und Balances 2730 1,828,045.30 000 0.00 0.00 1100
Assigned to
Special Revenue 2741 000 006 0 (M) 0} (M) 0o
Debt Service 2742 0.00 000 0.00 .04 (XL
Capital Projects 2743 0,040 11,00 0.4} ({4} (100
Permanent Fund 2744 11,00 (100 000 0.0H) 1106
Assigned lor Office and Fee Based Budgets 2749 TR2.854.85 01,00 (.00 000 11001
f\ss!g1_1edfur 2749 0.00 000 000 0.00 (M)
Total Assigned Fund Balances 2740 782.854 85 0,00 0.00 0.00 00,00
Total Unassigned Fund Balances 2750 0,00 .00 0.00 (LM}
Total Fund Bal 2700 30.745.877 50 10.612.592 84 0.00 0.00 7.136,475.69

32.383.771.63

11,284,745 30

569.310.11

95,958 91

7.612,788.72

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Bal

The notes o financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2021

Other Other Total
Account Capital Projects Governmental Governmental
Number 390 Funds Funds
ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents iy 250174207 68 5,400,802 96 78.708.696.3%
Invesiments 1160 000 2}.456 97 21.456.97
Taxes Receivable. Net 20 .00 .00 0.00
A nts Receivable, Net 113) [(R] (1,00 4,540 30
Interest Receivable on Investments 1170 0,00 {LiH) 000
Due From Other Apencies 1220 1.841.599.66 1Kl 5,365,953 54
Due From Budgetary Funds 1141 oo 0 .00
Due From [nsurer 1180 L [IN14] {00
Deposits Receivable 1210 .00 0o 0,041
Due From [ntemal Funds 1142 0.an 0.00 .00
Cash with Fiscal/Service Agents 1114 .00 [t 0.0
Inventory 1154 0.00 .00 183.996.56
Prepaid ltems 1230 N an .00
Long-Term Investments 1460 T0(H} 0.00 0.00
Total Assets 26.915.807.35 5.422.261.74 B4.284.643.76
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Accumulaled Decrease in Fair Value of Hedging Denvalives 1910 (L0 11IHE 060
Total Deferred Qutfiows of Resources .00 000 {00
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 26,915.807.35 5.422.261.74 84.284.643.76
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES
AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Cash Overdraft 2125 [138.3] 400 0.0¢
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 211 11{X1 1100 472,416,859
Pavroll Deductions and Withholdings 2170 [1E%] 1,00 32.47%.0%
Accounts Payvable 2120 97.195.00 0.0 2.294,907.41
Sales Tax Pavable 2260 0.00 (LK) 000
Current Notes Pavable 2250 Do (LK 0.00
Accrued Interest Pavable 2210 [ER] 000 .00
Deposits Pavable 2220 .00 A8 331.690.07
Due to Other Agencies 2230 0.0 168 50 326.482.40
Blue 1o Budgetary Funds 2161 X L] oo 0.00
Due 1o Internal Funds 2162 000 13,00 LK}
Due to Fiscal Agenl 2240 i 0,00 .00
Pension Liability 2115 () (4.00 0.00
Other Postemplovment Benefits Liabilitv 2116 1101 0.00 040
Jud ts Pavable 2130 0.0 000 0.00
Construcuon Contracts Payable 2140 1LY 0460 10,06
Construction Contracts Pavable - Retained Percentage 2150 LOHL218.64 0.u0 1.090,236.22
Matured Bonds Pavable 2189 100 [AXEY 0.00
Maltured Interest Pavable 2190 Ry ) Q.00
Uneamed Revenue 2410 LALY [1X183 Q.06
Unavailable Revenue 2410 Quir X5 0.00
Total Lisbilities 1,146,413 64 169.5¢ 4598,211.78
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Accumulated Increase in Fair Value of Hedging Derivaves 2610 0.0 (] (.00
Deferred Revenues 2630 0.00 000 0.00
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 0.00 0.00 0.
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendabie:
Inventory 211 (LAM) QALY 183.984.76
Prepaid Amounis 2712 0.00 Q.00 0.00
Permanem Fund Principal 2713 .00 aon 000
Other Not in Spendable Form 214 00 0.00 (.00
Total Nonspendable Fund Balances 2710 000 {00 183.984.76
Restricted for:
Econeric Stabilizalion 721 [ 000 .00
Federal Required Carrvover Programs 2722 [ {00 0.00
State Required Carnvover Programs 27123 [EE] 0.0} 5.231.157.0)
Local Sales Tax and Other Tax Levy 2724 .00 .00 {L00
Debi Service 2725 0.00 JOTILO40.00 3.070.049.00
Capital Projects 2726 25.769,393 71 235204323 35,257912.64
Restricted for Food Service 2729 10,00 0.00 10.526.829.21
Restricted for 2729 .00 000 000
Total Restricred Fund Balances 2720 25.769.393.71 5.422.092 24 55085947 B6
Commitied fo:
Economic Stabilization 2731 [ .00 0.00
Centractual Agreements 2732 0 ton 0.00
Committed for Board Approved Carryover 2739 11 My .00 1.BZE045.30
Committed for 2739 .00 (LG (XU
Total Commutted Fund Balances 2730 0.00 G40 1,828.045.30
Assigned to:
Special Revenue 2741 L (LK} 0.00
Debt Service 2742 U 00 0,00 .00
Capital Projects 2743 000 [y 0.0
Permanent Fund 2744 pEeh] (LI 00,00
Assigned for Office and Fee Based Budgets 2749 000 L 782,854.85
Assigned for 2749 1.04) (00 n.og
Total Assigned FFund Balances 2740 0.00 .00 782,854 85
Total Unassigned Fund Balances 2750 04 (.40 21,805 59921
Total Fund Balances 2700 25.7649.393.71 5.422,092 34 79.686.431.98
Taotal Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
R es and Fund Bai; 26,915.807.35 5422261.74 84.284.643.76.

The notes o financial stalements are an integral pan of this statement.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as assets in the governmental funds.

Deferred charges on debt refunding are not expenses in the government-wide statements
but are reported as deferred outflows of resources and amortized over the life of the debt.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of risk management
services to the individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds
are included in governmental activities in the statement of net position.

Deferred outflows and inflows are resources related to pensions and other postemployment
benefits (OPEB) applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to OPEB 5 1,498,178.00
Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Pensions 60,093,931.00
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (2,824,192.00)
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (5,292,295.00)

L.ong-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported
as liabilities in the governmental funds. Long-term liabilities at fiscal year end consist of:

Certificates of Participation Payable $  (49,695,051.60)
Bonds Payable (1,107,766.64)
Compensated Absences Payable (16,561,479.40)
Net Pension Liability (171,188,553.00)
Other Post Employment Benefits Payable (21,962,874.00)

Total Net Position - Governmental Activities

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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% 75,686,431.98

309,614.688.09

688,421.21

5,790,586.73

53,475,622.00

(260,515,724.64)

$ 188,740,025.37




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Exhibit C-3
Page 6

Food Other Federal Federal Education Nonvoted Capital
Account General Services Programs Stabilization Fund Improvement Fund
Number 100 410 420 440 370

REVENUES

Federal Direct 3100 1.006,058.58 0.00 3,969,793 71 000 0.00

Federal Through State and Local 3200 962, 180.86 12,920,146 .66 15.707.696 98 10,380, |38 00 0.00

State Sources 3300 169,728 460 66 108,130 00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Local Sources:

Property Taxes Levied, Tax Redemptions and Excess Fees for 3411, 3421,

Operational Purposes 3423 5481737763 000 0.00 000 000
Property Taxes Levied, Tax Redemptions and Excess Fees for 3412, 3421,

Debt Service 3423 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00
Property Taxes Levied, Tax Redemptions and Excess Fees for 3413, 3421,

Capital Projects 3423 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 18.065,506.00
Local Sales Taxes 3418, 3419 0.00 000 000 000 0.00
Charges for Service - Food Service 345X 0.00 1,931,578 28 0.00 000 000
Impact Fees 3496 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00
Other Local Revenue 4,007.367.84 175,831.22 000 000 1,070.83
Total Local Sources 3400 58,824,745 47 2,107,409.50 0.00 0.00 18,066,576 83

Total Revenues 230,521.445.57 15,135,686 16 19,677,490.69 10,380,138 00 18,066,576.83

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Instruction 5000 143,081,346.77 (.00 9,070,504 09 B.111.594 16 0.00
Student Support Services 6100 10,106,700.17 0.00 1,206,247 16 457,620 72 0.00
Instructional Media Services 6200 2,496,394 72 0.00 62,638 65 0.00 0.00
Instruction and Curnculum Development Services 63 4,675,991 14 0.00 3,111,149 13 41,608 43 000
Instructional Staff Training Services 6400 1,304,163.95 0.00 1,147,805 84 33,919 78 000
Instruction-Related Technology 6500 3,812,696 94 0.00 196,607 88 0.00 0.00
Board 7100 703.043.21 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
General Administration 7200 1,029,176 30 000 479,372 68 130,528 63 000
School Administration 7300 15,496,410 26 0.00 273.710.99 0.00 000
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7410 1.358 00 0.00 1,529 21 0 00 3,467,512 83
Fiscal Services 7500 1,887,498 92 0.00 000 000 0.00
Food Services 7600 0.00 11,394 528 09 0.00 0.00 0.00
Central Services 7700 3,279,614 55 0.00 250,115.10 000 0.00
Student Transpontation Services 7800 13,605,842 53 0.00 10,470 06 858127 0.00
Operation of Plant 7900 16,720,001.11 000 3,305,961 07 1,274,590 36 0.00
Mai of Plant 8100 3,740,153 23 0.00 000 0 .00 81831227
Administrative Technology Services 8200 2.586,741 73 0.00 000 000 0.00
Community Services 9100 1,880,394 40 000 472,374 38 41,776 80 000
Debt Service; (Function 9200)
Red ion of Principal 710 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00
Interest 720 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Dues and Fees 730 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Debt Service 791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Capital Outlay:
Facilities A and Construction 7420 6,510.00 0.00 0.00 000 211561144
Charter School Local Capital Improvement 7430 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Charter School Capital Outlay Sales Tax 7440 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Capital Outlay 9300 1,476,290 03 788,767.32 459.581 60 279,917 88 22,874 66

Total Expenditures 227,890,327.94 12,183,29631 20,048,068 04 10,380, 138 00 6,424,311.20

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 2,631,11763 2,952,389 85 (370,577 35) 000 11,642,265 63

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Issuance of Bonds 3710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 000
Premium on Sale of Bonds 3791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 000
Discount on Sale of Bonds 891 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 000

Proceeds of Lease-Purchase Agr 3750 0.00 0.00 0 00 0 00 000
Premium on Lease-Purchase Agreements 3793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Discount on Lease-Purchase Agreements 893 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 000

Loans 3720 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 000

Sale of Capital Assets 3730 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 000

Loss Recoveries 3740 676.59 0.00 0.00 000 223,502 22

Proceeds of Forward Supplv Contract 3760 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Proceeds from Special Facility Construction Account 3770 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Face Value of Refunding Bonds 3715 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0 00
Premium on Refunding Bonds 3792 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 000
Discount on Refunding Bonds 892 0,00 0.00 0.00 000 000

Refunding Lease-Purchase Agr 1t 3758 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Premium on Refunding Lease-Purchase Agreements 3794 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0 00
Discount on Refunding Lease-Purchase Agreements 894 000 000 0.00 0.00 0.00

Payments to Refunding Escrow Agent (Function 9299) 760 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 000

Transfers In 3600 4,944,393 88 0 .00 370,577.35 0.00 000

Transfers Out 9700 (370,577.35) 000 0.00 000 (B.589.750 51)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 457449312 0.00 370,577 .35 0.00 (8,366,248 29)

SPECIAL ITEMS

000 0.00 0.00 000 0.00

EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

0.00 0.00 000 0.00 000

Net Change in Fund Balances 7,205,610.75 2,952,389 .85 (0.00) 0.00 3,276,017.34

Fund Bal July 1, 2020 2800 23,540,266 75 7.660.202.99 0.00 0.00 3,860,458 35

Adjustments to Fund Balances 2891 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 000

Fund Balances, June 30, 2021 2700 30,745,877 50 10,612,592 84 (0.00) 0.00 7.136,475.69

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Other Other Total
Account Capital Projects Governmental Governmental
Number 390 Funds Funds

REVENUES

Federal Direct 3100 0.00 0.00 4,975,852.29

Federal Through State and Local 3200 0.00 0.00 39,970,162.50

State Sources 3300 1,067,299 10 1,190,951 .51 172,094,841 27

Local Sources:

Property Taxes Levied, Tax Redemptions and Excess Fees for 3411, 3421,

Operational Purposes 3423 .00 0.00 54,817.377.63
Property Taxes Levied, Tax Redemptions and Excess Fees for 3412, 3421,

Debt Service 3423 000 0.00 0.00
Property Taxes Levied, Tax Redemptions and Excess Fees for 3413, 3421,

Capital Projects 3423 000 0.00 18,065,506 .00
Local Sales Taxes 3418, 3419 12,177,574.17 000 12,177,574.17
Charges for Service - Food Service 345X 0.00 0.00 1,931,578 28
Impact Fees 3496 0.00 000 0.00
Other Local Revenue 132,906 84 8408 55 4,325,585.28
Total Local Sources 3400 12,310,481 01 8,408 55 91,317.621.36

Total Revenues 13,377,780.11 1,199,360.06 308,358,477 42

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Instruction 5000 0.00 0.00 160,263,445 02
Student Support Services 6100 0.00 0.00 11,770,568 05
Instructional Media Services 6200 0.00 0.00 2,559,033 37
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 6300 0.00 0.00 7,828,748 70
Instructional Staff Training Services 6400 0.00 000 2,485 889 54
Instruction-Related Technology 6500 0.00 0.00 4,009,304 82
Board 7100 0.00 000 703,043 21
General Administration 7200 0.00 0.00 1,639,077 61
School Administration 7300 0.00 0.00 15,770,121.25
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7410 3,088,242 66 305,451 35 6,864,094 05
Fiscal Services 7500 0.00 0.00 1,887,498 92
Food Services 7600 0.00 0.00 11,394,528 99
Cenrral Services 7700 0.00 0.00 3,520,729 63
Student Transportation Services 7800 0.00 000 13,624,893 R6
Operation of Plant 7900 0.00 0.00 21,300,552.54
Mai of Plant 8100 43,743 23 71,353 83 4,673,562 56
Administrative Technology Services 8200 000 0.00 2,586,741 73
Community Services 9100 0.00 000 2,394,54578
Debt Service: (Function 9200)
Redemption of Principal 710 0.00 2,113,000 00 2,113,000.00
Interest 720 0.00 3,843 82 2,133,843 82
Dues and Fees 730 0.00 12.216.22 12.216.22
Other Debt Service 791 0.00 0.00 0.00
Capital Outlay:
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7420 15.717.796.69 0.00 17,839.918.13
Charter School Local Capital Improvement 7430 0.00 0.00 0.00
Charter School Capital Outlay Sales Tax 7440 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Capital Outlay 9300 0.00 0.00 3.027.431 49

Total Expenditures 18,849,782 58 4,635,865 22 300.411,789.29

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (5,472,002 47) (3,436,505 16) 7,946,688 13

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Issuance of Bonds 3710 0.00 0.00 0.00
Premium on Sale of Bonds 3791 0.00 0.00 0.00
Discount on Sale of Bonds 891 0.00 0.00 0.00

Proceeds of Lease-Purchase Agreements 3750 0.00 0.00 0.00
Premium on Lease-Purchase Agreements 3793 0.00 0.00 000
Discount on Lease-Purchase Agreements 893 0.00 0.00 0.00

Loans 3720 0.00 0.00 000

Sale of Capital Assets 3730 1,019,152.00 0.00 1,019,152 00

Loss Recoveries 3740 0.00 0 00 224,178 81

Proceeds of Forward Supply Contract 3760 0.00 000 0.00

Proceeds from Special Facility Construction Account 3770 0.00 0.00 0.00

Face Value of Refunding Bonds 3713 0.00 0.00 0.00
Premium on Refunding Bonds 3792 0.00 0.00 0.00
Discount on Refunding Bonds 892 0.00 0.00 0.00

Refunding Lease-Purchase Agreements 3753 0.00 0.00 0,00
Premium on Refunding Lease-Purchase Agreements 3794 0.00 0.00 0.00
Discount on Refunding Lease-Purchase Agreements 894 0.00 0.00 0.00

Payments to Refunding Escrow Agent (Function 9299) 760 0.00 0.00 0.00

Transfers In 3600 0.00 4,060,812 13 0,375,783 36

Transfers Out 9700 (415,455.50) 000 (9,375.783.36)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 603,696 50 4.060812.13 1,243,330.81

SPECIAL ITEMS

0.00 0.00 0.00

EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

0.00 000 D00

Net Change in Fund Bal (4,868,305.97) 624,306 97 9,190,018.94

Fund Balances, July 1, 2020 2800 30,637,699 68 4.797,785.27 70,496,413 04

Adjustments to Fund Balances 2891 0.00 0.00 0.00

Fund Balances, June 30, 2021 2700 25,769,393 .71 542209224 79,686,431 98

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 9,190,018.94
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures; however, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as a depreciation
expense. This is the amount of depreciation in excess of capital outlay in the current period. 13,460,145.15

The statement of activities reflects only the gain/loss on the sale of assets, whereas the governmental funds
include all proceeds from these sales. Thus, the change in net position differs from the change in fund balances
by the cost of assets sold. (1,317,338.21)

Repayment of long-term debt is an expenditure in the governmental funds but repayment
reduces long-term debt in the statement of net position. 2,113,000.00

Some revenues and expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as revenues and expenditures in the governmental funds. 215,037.63

In the statement of activities, the cost of compensated absences is measured by the amounts earned during
the year, while in the governmental funds expenditures are recognized based on the amounts actually paid for
compensated absences. This is the net amount of compensated absences earned in excess of the amount paid
in the current period. 6,115,328.29

In the statement of activities, the cost of other post employment benefit (OPEB) obligation is measured
by actuarial estimations, while in the governmental funds expenditures are recognized based on amounts
amounts actually paid for OPEB. This is the net increase of the OPEB obligation for the current period. (1,386,282.00)

Governmental funds report district pension contributions as expenditures; however, in the statement of
activities, the cost of pension benefits earned net of employee contributions is reported as a pension expense. (15,481,817.00)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of certain activities, such as
insurance, to individual funds. The net income (loss) of internal service funds is reported with
governmental activities. {4,838,664.18)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 38,069,428.62

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2021

Govemnmental
Aclivilies -
Account Intemal Service
Number Funds
ASSETS
Current assets.
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1o 13.008.840 |8
Invi 1160 0 00
Accounts Receivable, Net 1131 11,00
Interest Receivable on Inv 1170 1) (M)
Due From Other Agencies 1220 (3,295 .68
Due From Insurer 1180 0.00
Due From Budgetary Funds 1141 000
Deposits Receivable 1210 000
Cash with Fiscal/Service Agents 1114 000
Inventory 1150 0,00
Prepaid ltems 1230 000
Total current assets 13.072.135 86
Noncurreni assels.
Section 1011.13. F S.. Loan Proceeds 1420 .00
Leases Receivable 1425 10.00
Long-Term Investments 1460 00K
Prepaid Insurance Cosis 1430 00
Other Postemployment Benefits Asset 1410 [
Pension Assel 1415 .00
Capital Assets.
Land 1310 000
Land Improvements - Nondepreciable 1315 13 (1)
Construction in Progress 1360 .00
Nondepreciable Capital Assets 0,00
Improvements Other Than Buildings 1320 0.00
A lated Depreciation 1329 .00
Buildings and Fixed Equip 1330 (.00
Accumulated Depreciation 1339 110K
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 1340 000
Accumulated Depreciation 1349 01,00
Motor Vehicles 1350 i)
Accumulated Depreciation 1359 000
Property Under Leases 1370 0100
Accumulated Amortization 1379 0.00
Computer Software 1382 0.00
Accumulated Amortization 1389 0.00
Depreciable Capital Assets. Net 0.00
Total Capual Assets 0.00
Tolal noncurrent assels 0.00
Total Assets 13,072,135 86
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Accumulated Decrease in Fair Value of Hedging Denvatives 1910 0.00
Nei Carrying Amouni of Debt Refunding 1920 .00
Pension 1940 (i)
Other Postemployment Benefits 1950 1100}
Assel Retnrement Obl 1960 11.06)
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 0,00
LIABILITIES
Current habilites
Cash Overdrafl 2125 0.00
Accrued Salanes and Benefits 2110 3R 26
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 2170 0100
Accounis Pavable 2120 672.240.02
Sales Tax Pavable 2260 (.00
Accrued Interest Pavable 2210 (XL
Deposits Pavable 2220 (100
Dug to Other Agencies 2230 100
Due to Budgetary Funds 2161 1,000
Pension Liability 2115 1,00
Other Postemployment Benefits Liability 2116 13,00
Unearned Revenues 2413 4.460.270.85
Esumated Unpmd Claims - Self-Insurance Program 2271 2,149 0011 D0
Estimated Liability for Claims Adjustment 2N 11,00
Total current habilines 7.281,549.13
Long-term liabilities
Unearned Revenues 2410 000
Obligations Under Leases 2315 000
Liability for Compensated Absences 2330 0,00
Estimated Liability for Long-Term Claims 2350 000
Net Other Postemplovment Benefits Obligation 2360 000
Net Pension Liability 2363 00
Other Long-Term Liabilities 2380 1) ()
Total long-term-liabilines 0.00
Total Liabilities 7.281.549.13
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Accumulated Increase in Fair Value of Hedging Denivatives 2610 1.0
Deficit Net Carrving Amount of Debt Refund 2620 0.00
Deferred Revenues 2630 [T
Pension 2640 000
Other Posiemployment Benefits 2650 100
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 0,00
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 2770 .00
Restricted for State required safe harbor reserve 2780 2,000,000 00
Unrestricted 2790 3,790,586 73
Total Net Position 5,790,586 73

The notes to financial stalements are an integral part of this statemenl.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Exhibit C-6

Governmental
Activities -
Account Internal Service
Number Funds

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services 3481 0.00
Charges for Sales 3482 0.00
Premium Revenue 3484 20,647.209.76
Other Operating Revenues 3489 87.500.00
Total Operating Revenues 20,734.709.76
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries 100 35.964.39
Employee Benefits 200 1.320,578.01
Purchased Services 300 3.532.813.94
Energy Services 400 0.00
Materials and Supplies 500 401.62
Capital Outlay 600 0.00
Other 700 22.,019.877.96
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 780 0.00
Total Operating Expenses 26,909,635.92
Operating Income (Loss) (6,174,926.16)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment Income 3430 1.877.00
Gifts, Grants and Bequests 3440 0.00
Other Miscellaneous Local Sources 3495 1,334.384.98
Loss Recoveries 3740 0.00
Gain on Disposition of Assets 3780 0.00
Interest 720 0.00
Miscellaneous 790 0.00
Loss on Disposition of Assets 810 0.00
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 1,336,261.98
Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers (4,838,664.18)
Transfers In 3600 0.00
Transfers Out 9700 0.00
SPECIAL ITEMS

0.00
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

0.00
Change In Net Position (4.838.664.18)
Net Position, July 1, 2020 2880 10.629.252.00
Adjustments to Net Position 2896 (1.09)
Net Position, June 30, 2021 2780 5,790.586.73

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Exhibit C-7
Page 10

Governmental
Activities -
Internal Service
Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users

20,647.209.76

Receipts from interfund services provided

0.60

Payments to suppliers

{2.307.407 9]

Payments to employees

11.356.542.40)

Payments for insurance claims and fees

(22.027.277 96)

Other receipts {payments)

£7.500.00

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

(4,956,518.51)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Subsidies from operating grants

1.334.384.98

Transfers from other funds

0.00

Transfers 1o other funds

.00

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

1,334,384.98

CASH FLOWS FROM CAFPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from capital debt

0.00

Capital contributions

0.00

Proceeds from dispositien of capital assets

0.00

Acquisition and construction of capital assets

000

Principal paid on capital debt

000

Interest paid on capital debt

0.00

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related fi ing activities

0.00

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments

0.00

Interest and dividends received

1,877.00

Purchase of investmenis

0.00

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

i.877.00

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(3,620,256.53)

Cash and cash equivalents - July 1, 2020

16.629,096.71

Cash and cash equivalents - June 30, 2021

13,008,840.18

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided
(used} by operating activities:

(6.174.926.16)

Operating income {loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (foss) to net cash
|provided fused) by operating activities:
Depreciation/Amortization expense

0.00

Commodities used from USDA program

0.00

Change in assets and liabifities:
(lncrease) decrease in accounts recervable

000

(Increase) decrease in interest receivable

0.60

(Increase) decrease in due from insurer

¢.00

(Increase) decrease in deposits receivable

0.00

{Increase) decrease in due from other funds

0.00

{Increase) decrease in due from other agencies

167.371.89

(Increase) decrease in inventory

0.0¢

(Increase) decrease in prepaid items

0.00

(Increase) decrease in pension

0.00

Increase (decrease) in salaries and benefits payable

38.26

Increase (decrease) in payroll tax liabilities

0.00

Increase {decrease) in accounts payable

672.240 02

Increase (decrease) in cash overdraft

0.00

Increase (decreasc) in judgments payable

0.00

Increase (decrease) in sales tax payable

0.00

Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable

0.00

Ingrease (decrease) in deposits payable

0.00

Increase (decrease) in due 1o other funds

0.00

Increase {decrease) in due 1o other agencies

0.00

Increase {decrease) in unearned revenues

(64.242.32)

Increase {decrease) in pension

.00

Increase {decrease} in other postemployment benefits

0.00

Increase {decrease) in estimated unpaid claims - Self-Insurance Prog,

443.000.00

Increase (decrease) in estimated liability for claims adjustment

0.00

Total adj

1,218,407.65

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

(4.956,518.51)

N h investing, capital and financing activities:
Borrowing under capital lease

0.00

Contributions of capital assets

0.00

Purchase of equipment on account

0.00

' Capital asset trade-ins

0.00

Net Increase/(Decrease) in the fair value of investments

0.00

Commodities received through USDA program

0.00

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

June 30, 2021

Account Total Custodial Funds
Number 89X

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1110 4.949.168.83
Investments 1160 0.00
Accounts Receivable, Net 1131 46,686.62
Pension Contributions Receivable 1132 VW,W,////A
Interest Receivable on Investments 1170 0.00
Due From Budgetary Funds 1141 0.00
Due From Other Agencies 1220 12,777.24
Inventory 1150 0.00
Total Assets 5,008,632.69
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES //////////
Accumulated Decrease in Fair Value of Hedging Derivatives 1910
Pension 1340 W
Other Postemployment Benefits 1950 W//////
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources W/W/
LIABILITIES
Cash Overdraft 2125 0.00
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 2110 2,689.50
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 2170 0.00
Accounts Payable 2120 312,561.75
Internal Accounts Payable 2290 0.00
Due to Other Agencies 2230 Vs
Due to Budgetary Funds 2161 4,500.00
Total Liabilities 319,751.25
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES ///////////
Accumulated Increase in Fair Value of Hedging Derivatives 2610 7
Pension 2640 v ///////A
Other Postemployment Benefits 2650 W/W/
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources ///////7/////7//';//////4
NET POSITION
Restricted for:

Pensions 2785 0.00

Postemployment benefits other than pensions 2785 0.00

Other purposes 2785 0.00

Individuals, organizations and other governments 2785 4,688,881 44
Total Net Position 4.688.881.44

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Account Total Custodial Funds
Number 89X
ADDITIONS
Student Group Collections 3495 5.700.383.58
Contributions:
Employer 0.00
Plan Members 286,385.98
Gifts. Grants and Bequests 3440 0.00
Total Contributions 286,385.98
Investment Income:
Interest on Investments 3431 0.00
Gain on Sale of Investments 3432 0.00
Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 3433 0.00
Total Investment Income 0.00
Less Investment Expense 0.00
Net Investment Income 0.00
Total Additions 5.986,769.56
DEDUCTIONS
Salaries 100 0.00
Employee Benefits 200 0.00
Purchased Services 300 0.00
Student Group Disbursements 700 5.360.689 .95
Claims 260.556.37
Administrative Expenses 0.00
Total Deductions 5,621,246.32
Change In Net Position 365,523.24
Net position-beginning 2885 0.00
Adjustments to Net Position 2896 4,323,358.20
Net position-ending 2785 468888144

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY
COMBEINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

MAJOR AND NONMAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

June H, 2021

Account Total Nonmajar
Nurnber Componrent Lnitx Total Component Linits
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Fquivalents 110 3953481 35,9530
11600 1.0} I
Taxes Recrivabic, Wet 1120 1.1 0.00
Accounts Receivable, Nel 1131 13177610 1377600
Inierest Receivable on lovestments 1 Dix o0
Due From Other Ageneics 1220 ALYSE A 3195800
Due From Insurer 1180 [{X5)) .00
[ Dcposito Reotivable 1210 G in o0
Internal Balances L0 .00
Cash with Fiscal:Scrvice Agents 1313 .00 (L]
Section 101113, F.5. [.oan Proceeds 1420 [l 0.00
Leascs Receivable 1425 100 0K
Invenlony 1150 000 01X
Prepard Nlems 1330 (LK 0.0
| Long-Term Investments 1460 [ 00
Prepaid Insurance Cosls 1430 Ay 0.0
Nhet Postemployment Benefils Asset 1410 .00 0.00
Pension Asscl 1415 13 (H) n.m
Capital Assets:
Land 1310 LESANKS bt 155 D000
Land Improvemenls - Nondepreciable 1315 L 000
Construction in Progress 1360 14K} 0.00
Nendepreciable Capital Asscly 1B5.000.00 185.0K0.00
improvements Other Than Buildings 1320 33234000 33234000
Less Acgumulated Depreciation 1329 L2R2.R340N) {262.854.00,
Buildings and Fixed Equipment 1330 126334 i) 1263 234.00
Less Accumulated i 1339 O (2E000.00)
Furniture. Fixtures and ¥quipment 1340 HI2A56 00 30243600
Less lated Dapreciation 1345 (277 64T M} (277,697.00)
Motor Yehicles 1350 10004 21.ROD. X}
Tess Accumulated Depreciation 135% 15,885 141} {15,885 [k
Property Under Lenses 1370 1ok 0.00
Less Actumulated Amertization 1379 i) [0
Audiovisusl Malerials 1381 ek 0.00
I.ess Accurnulated D 1388 0.0 0.00
Computer Safbware 1382 2S00 () 2330000
Less Accumulated Amortizalion 1389 i23.847.001 (22.847.001)
Depreciabic Capital Assels, biet 1.154.047.00 1.154.047.00
Total Camital Awels 133904700 133904700
Total Assets 1,700,734 04 1.700. 734 0
TDEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Accumutaied Decrease i Fair Value of Hedging Derivatives 1910 ML [0
Mct Carrving Amount of Debt Refunding 1920 1 (K} 0.080
Peasion 1940 ki 0.00
Other Posiemployment Benafits 1950 LHeRb 0
Asset Retirernent Obligation 1960 [T .00
Total Deferred Outflow s of Resonrers GO0 000
LIABILITIES
Cash Cverdraft 2128 (LN 000
Accrucd Salarics and Benetits 210 2430400 343200
Pavroll Deductions and Withholdings 2170 DY 000
Accounts Payable 2120 412340 412300
Sales Tax Payable 260 0.0 0.00
Currzal Notes Payable 2350 U tkh 0.00
Accrucd Inlerest Pavable 2210 Lk} 0o
Deponils Pavable 220 0} Xt 0.00
Duc to Cther Agencics 2230 b SRR TE 343 00
Duc tn Fiscal Agent 2240 00 0.0
Pension Liability 2118 (LA 0.00
{ther Postemployment Benetits Linbility 2116 .0 [IX1))
Judgments Pavable 2130 win 0.00
Censtrucrion Contracts Pavable 2140 4100 LEVY)
Consinkclion Contracls Pavable - Retained Percentage 2150 1110 Q.00
Estimzicd Unpand Claims - Sell-Insurance Program 27 11 1K1 .00
Futimated Libility for Claims Adj 72 110K om
Estimated ty for Arbllrage Rebate 2080 otk 040
Uncamed Revenues 2416 U B} 00
Lomg-Term Liabilities
Portor Due Within One Fear:
2310 135087 (W) 135 087 O
2313 [zt 00
2320 1) 0.00
isbility for £ Absgnces 2330 T TH0450
casc-Purchase Agpreements Payable 2340 um O
istimated Liability for Long-Term Claims 50 .00 0.0
Met Other Posiempioyment Benefils Obligation 2360 oo 0.0
Net Pension Liability 2385 1 (kY noe
Eslimaled PECO Advance Payable 2370 11K, 1.0
Other Long-Term Lishibies 2380 tar [
Derivative Instrument 2390 (he8) 000
Estimated Liabiliry for Arbitmge Rebale 2280 o 000
Nue Within Onc Yrar 142,691 00 142 641 00
Portion Dus Afier Cne Year.
Nutes Pavable 1IN 682 53N
Obligations Under Leases 000 .
Honds Payable . LT o
| Liability for Compensated Abscnces I 2
Tease-Purchase Agrecments Payable 0 D0
Estimated Lizbility for ] ong-Term Claims LIEKE 00
Net Other Postemplovment Henefits Obligation %y oo
Nel Pension Liamity [fRel] [
Fstimated PECO Advanse Prvable %) 000
Other Long: Term Liabililics EXL] 000
Dxrivaiive [T} 000
Estimated Linbility for Arbitrags Rebatc .00 0.0
Iuc in More than One Year £82.530.60 682.530.00
Total Lonp-Term Liabi R3340 B25231.00
Totad Liabilities Exp R AN 3 1.0719. 06
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Accumulated Increasc in Fair Value of Fledging Derivalives 2610 [(311] 00 Ry
Deficit Net Carry ing Amount of Debt Refunding 2620 0 0.0y
Deferred Rovenues 2630 000 0.0
Pension 40 (AL 000
Cnher Postemployment Benetits 2650 .00 .00
Todnl Deferred Inflows of o0 .00
NET POSITION
Net invesimenl in Capital Assels 70 S.K2TIH) 549 52700
Hestricted For
Caegoncal Carrvover Programs 2780 SIL0) 000
Food Service 2780 511 0.
Dbt Service 2780 [T 0.0
Cspital Projects 2780 [E5L0) 000
Other Purposes 2730 [ORIESXEN 10.500.00
Unrestricted 2190 2 ARR AN 205 38800
Total Net Pasition 762.715.60 769.715.00

The naotes to linancisl statements are an integral part of his slaiement.
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY .

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

MAJOR AND NONMAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

TOTAL NONMAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Program Revenues Net (Expense)
Operating Capital Revenue and Changes
Account Charges for Grants and Grants and in Net Position

FUNCTIONS Number Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Component Unit

Component Unit Activities:
Instruction 5000 611,842.00 0.00 49.181.00 0.00 (562,661.00)
Student Support Services 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Instructional Media Services 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Instructional Staff Training Services 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Instruction-Related Technology 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Board 7100 10,908.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (10,908.00)
General Administration 7200 6.462.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (6,462.00)
School Administration 7300 183.411.00 0.00 3.293.00 0.00 (180,118.00)
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7400 1.415.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (1,415.00)
Fiscal Services 7500 102,152.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (102,152.00)
Food Services 7600 740.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (740.00)
Central Services 7700 90,059.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (90,059.00)
Student Transportation Services 7800 112,823.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (112,823.00)
Operation of Plant 7900 101,599.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (101,599.00)
Maintenance ol Plant 8100 216.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (216.00)
Administrative Technology Services 8200 64,804.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (64,804.00)
Community Services 9100 2,192.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (2,192.00)
Interest on Long-Term Debt 9200 39.131.00 0.00 0.00 61,658.00 22,527.00
Unallocated Depreciation/Amortization Expense 10.173.00 W0 0 0 (10,173.00)

Total Component Unit Activities 1,337,927.00 0.00 52,474.00 61,658.00 (1.223,795.00)

General Revenues:
Taxes:

Property Taxes. Levied for Operational Purposes
Property Taxes, Levied for Debt Service
Property Taxes, Levied for Capital Projects

Local Sales Taxes

Grants and Contributions Not Restricted to Specific Programs

Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous
Special Items
Extraordinary Items

T'ransfers

Total General Revenues, Special ltems, Extraordinary Items and Transfers

Change in Net Position
Net Position, July 1. 2020
Adjustments to Net Position
Net Position, June 30, 2021

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

ESE 145

826.732.00

16,320.00

132,122.00

8.878.00

304,013.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

1,288.,065.00

64,270.00

705,445.00

0.00

769,715.00
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Program Revenues Net (Expense)
Operating Capital Revenue and Changes
Account Charges for Grants and Grants and in Net Position
FUNCTIONS Number Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Component Unit
Component Unit Activities:
Instruction 5000 611,842.00 0.00 49.181.00 0.00 (562,6601.00)
Student Support Services 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Instructional Media Services 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Instructional Staff Training Services 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Instruction-Related Technology 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Board 7100 10,908.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (10,908.00)
General Administration 7200 6.462.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (6,462.00)
School Administration 7300 183.411.00 0.00 3.293.00 0.00 (180,118.00)
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7400 1.415.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (1,415.00)
Fiscal Services 7500 102,152.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (102,152.00)
Food Services 7600 740,00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (740.00)
Central Services 7700 90,059.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (90,059.00)
Student Transportation Services 7800 112,823.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (112,823.00)
Operation of Plant 7900 101,599.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (101,599.00)
Maintenance of Plant 8100 216.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (216.00)
Administrative Technology Services 8200 64.804.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 (64,804.00)
Loss of Disposal 9100 2.192.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (2.192.00)
Interest on Long-Term Debt 9200 39.131.00 0.00 0.00 61,658.00 22,527.00
Unallocated Depreciation/Amortization Expense 10.173.00 Y0000 00000000 s (10,173.00)
Total Component Unit Activities 1.337.927.00 0.00 52,474.00 61,658.00 (1,223,795.00)

General Revenues:

FTE Income

Federal through State
PPP Loan Forgivenss
Miscellaneous

Grants and Contributions Not Restricted to Specific Programs

Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous
Special Items
Extraordinary ltems
Transfers

Total General Revenues, Special Items, Extraordinary Items and Transfers

Change in Net Position
Net Position, July 1, 2020
Adjustments to Net Position
Net Position, June 30, 2021

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
ESE 145

826.732.00

16,320.00

132,122.00

8.878.00

304,013.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

1,288,065.00

64,270.00

705,445.00

0.00

769,715.00
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Description of Govemnment-wide Financial Statements

B.

The government-wide financial statements (Le., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and
its componert units. All fiduciary activities are reported only in the fund financial statements.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes, ntergovernmental reverues, and
other nonexchange transactions, are reported separately from certain legally separated component
units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues
for each function or program of the Santa Rosa County School District’s (District) governmental
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically assoctated with a service, program, or
department and are thereby clearly identifiable to a particular function. Depreciation expense that
is clearly identifiable 1o a function is allocated to the function, and the remaining depreciation
expense 1s reported as unallocared.

Reporiing Entity

The Santa Rosa County District School Board (Board) has direct responsibility for operation,
control, and supervision of District schools and is considered a primary government for financial
reporting. The District 1s considered part of the Florida system of public education, operates under
the general direction of the Florida Department of Education (FDOE), and is governed by State
law and State Board of Education (SBE) rules. The governing body of the District is the Board,
which is composed of five elected members. The elected Superintendent of Schools is the execurive
officer of the Board. Geographic boundaries of the District correspond with those of Santa Rosa
County.

Criteria for determining if other entries are potential component units which should be reported
within the District’s basic financial statements are identified and described in the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) Codifseation of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting
Standardr, Sections 2100 and 2600, The application of these criteria provides for identification of
any legally separate entities for which the Board is financially accountable and other orgamzations
for which the nature and significance of their relationships with the Board are such that exclusion
would cause the District’s basic financial statements to be misleading. Based on the application of
these criteria, the following component units are included within the District’s reporting entity:

Blended Component Unit — Blended component units are, in substance, part of the District’s
operations, even though they are legally separate entities. Thus, blended component units are
appropriately presented as part of the District. The Santa Rosa School Board Leasing Corporation
(Leasing Corporation) was formed to facilitate financing for the acquisition of facilities and
equipment as further discussed in a subsequent note. Due to the substantive economuc relationship
between the District and the Leasing Corporation, the financial activities of the Leasing
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Corporation are included in the accompanying basic financial statements. Separate fmancial
statemerts for the Leasing Corporation are not published.

Discretely Presented Component Units - The component units columns in the government-
wide financial statememts include the financial data of the District's other component unns, A
separate column is used to emphasize that they are legally separate from the Distnict.

The District’s charter schools, the Learning Academy, Inc. and Capstone Academy, LLC, are not-
for-profit corporations organized pursuant to Chapter 617, Flonda Statutes, the Flonda Not for
Profit Corporation Act, and Section 1002.33, Florida Statures. The charter schools operate under
a charter approved by their sponsor, the Santa Rosa County District School Board. The charter
schools are considered to be component units of the District because the District is financially
accountable for the charter schools as the District established the charter schools by approval of
the charter, which is tantamount to the initial appointment of the charter schools, and there is the
potential for the charter schools to impose specific financial burdens on the District. In addition,
pursuant to the Florida Constitution, the charter schools are public schools and the District is
responsible for the operation, control, and supervision of public schools within the District.

The financial data reported on the accompanying statements was derived from the charter schools’
audited financial statemems for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. The audit reports are filed in
the District’s administrative offices at 5086 Canal Street, Milton, Flonida 32570.

Basis of Presentation: Government-wide Financial Statements

While separate government-wide and fund financial staternents are presented, they are irerrelated.
The governmental activities column incorporates data from governmental funds and the internal
service fund. Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, the proprietary
fund, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statemerts.

The effects of interfund activity have been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements except for interfund services provided and used.

Basis of Presentation: Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide mformation abowt the Distnict’s funds, including the
fiduciary funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category -
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary ~ are presemted. The emphasis of fund financial
statements is on major governmental funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining
governmental funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

The District reports the following major governmental funds:

o General Fund - to account for all financial resources not required to be accounted for in
another fund and for certain revenues from the State that are legally restricted to be
expended for specific current operating purposes.
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» Special Revenue - Food Service - 1o account for the financial resources, including
Federal grants and local sources, and expenditure payments associated with the District’s
food service programs.

¢ Special Revenue - Orther Federal Programs - to account for certain Federal grant
program resources.

o Special Revenue — Federal Fducation Stabilization Fund - to account for emergency
relief funds to assist tn the Coronavirus recovery efforts.

o  Capnal Projects - Local Capital Improvement Fund - to account for the financial
resources generated by local capital mprovement tax levy to be used for educational

capital outlay needs, including new construction, renovarion and remodeling projects,
new and replacement equipmemnt, and debt service payments on certficates of
participatiosl.

s  Capnal Projects - Other Fund - to account for various financial resources (e.g., capital
outlay sales and charter school capital outlay fundlng) 1o be used for educartional capital
outlay needs, including new construction and renovation and remodeling projects.

Additionally, the District reports the following proprietary and fiduciary fund types:
s Intemal Service Funds ~ 1o account for the District’s individual self-insurance programs.

+  Custodial Funds - w0 accoum for resources of the District’s flexible benefits plan and
the school internal funds, which are used to administer moneys collected at schools in
connection with school, student athletic, class, and club activities.

Certain activity occurs during the fiscal year involving transfers of resources between funds. In
fund financial statements, these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in and out.
While reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the
government-wide financial statements.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement
focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured
such as current financial resources or economic resources. The basis of accoumnting indicates the
timing of transactions or events for recognition in the financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economuc resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned,
and expenses are recognized when a liability 1s incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash
flows. Property taxes are recognized in the year for which they are levied. Revenues from grants,
entitlements, and donations are recognized as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, except for certain
grant revenues, are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough
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thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the District considers revenues
to be available if they are collected within 30 days of the end of the current fiscal year. When gramt
terms provide that the expenditure of resources is the prime factor for determining eligibility for
Federal, State, and other grant resources, revenue is recognized at the time the expenditure 15 made.
Entitlements are recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met, including any time
requirements, and the amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this
revenue source {within 30 days of fiscal year-end). Expenditures are generally recognized when the
related fund Hability is incurred, as under accrual accourting. However, debt service expendirures,
claims and judgments, pension benefits, other postemployment benefis, and compensated
absences, are only recorded when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation, are not recognized
in governmental funds.

The proprietary fund is reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. The custodial fund has no measurement focus but uulizes the accrual basis of
accournting for reporting assets and liabilities.

The charter schools are accounted for as governmertal organizations and follow the same
accounting model as the District’s governmental activities.

Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources and Net Position/Fund

Balance

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The District’s cash and cash equivalents are considered 1o be cash on hand, demand depostts,
and short-term liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less from the
date of acquisition. Investments classified as cash equivalents include amounts placed with the
State Board of Admiristration (SBA) in Florida PRIME.

Cash deposits are held by banks qualified as public depositories under Florida law. All deposits
are insured by Federal depository msurance, up o specified hmits, or collateralized with
securtties held in Florida's multiple financial institution collateral pool as required by Chapter
280, Florida Statutes.

2. Investments

Investments consist of amounts placed in SBA debt service accounts for mvestment of debt
service moneys and amounts placed with the SBA for participation in the Florida PRIME
investment pool created by Sections 218.4C5, Florida Statutes. The investment pool operates
under investment guidelines established by Section 215.47, Flonda Statutes.

The District’s investments in Florida PRIME, which the SBA indicates is a Securties and
Exchange Commission Rule 2a7-like external investment pool, are similar to money market
funds in which shares are owned in the fund rather than the undertying investments. These
mvestments are reported at fair value, which is amortized cost.
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Types and amounts of investments held at fiscal year-end are described in a subsequent note
On INvestments.

Inventories

Inventories consist of expendable supplies held for consumption in the course of District
operations. Inventories are stated at cost on a moving-average basis, except that transportation
fuel is stated at the last mvoice price, which approximates the first-in, first-out basis. United
States Department of Agriculture donated foods are stated at their fair value as determined at
the time of donation to the District's food service program by the Flonda Department of
Agriculture and Consumer Services, Bureau of Food Distribution. The costs of inventories are
recorded as expenditures when used rather than purchased.

Capital Assets

Expenditures for capital assets acquired or constructed for general District purposes are
reported in the governmental fund that financed the acquisition or construction. The caprtal
assets so acquired are reported at cost in the government-wide statement of net position but
are not reported in the governmental fund financial statements. Capital assets are defined by
the District as those costing more than $1,000, except for buildings and improvements other
than buildings which are defined as assets costing more than $5,000. Such assets are recorded
at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated assets are
recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful
lives:

Descripton Esumated Useful Lives
Improvemerrs Other than Buildings 10 - 40 years
Buildings and Fixed Equipment 10 - 50 years
Furniture, Fixtures, and E quipmem 3 - 20 years
Motor Vehicles 15 years
Audio Visual Materials and Computer Software 5- 7 years

Current fiscal year information relative to changes in capital assets is described in a subsequent
note.

Pensions

In the government-wide statement of net position, liabilities are recognized for the District’s
proportionate share of each pension plan’s net pension liability. For purposes of measuring the
net pension liability, deferred owtflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Florida
Retiremem System (FRS) defined benefit plan and the Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) defined
benefit plan, and additions to/deductions from the FRS and the HIS fiduciary net position
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have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the FRS and the HIS plans.
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with benefir terms. Investments are reporied
at fair value.

The District’s retirement plans and related amourts are described i a subsequent note.

Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term obligations that will be financed from resources 1o be received in the furure by
governmental funds are reported as liabilities in the government-wide staternent of net position.
Debt premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the debt. Bonds and
certificates of participation payable are reported net of the applicable premiums or discourts.

In the governmental fund financial statements, bonds and other long-term obligations are not
recognized as liabilities untl due. Governmental fund types recognize debt premiums and
discounts during the curremt fiscal year. The face amourt of debt ssued and the relared debt
premiums are reported as other financing sources.

Changes in fong-term liabilities for the current fiscal year are reported in a subsequent note.

Deferred Qutflows/Inflows_of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, dgferred outflows of resomrces,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be
recognized as an owtflow of resources (expense) until then. The District has three ems that
qualify for reporting in this category. The first is a deferred charge on debt refunding that resules
from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and ts reacquisition price. This
amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding
debt. The other deferred amounts are related to pensions and other postemployment benefits
(OPEB) which are discussed in subsequent notes.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resomrces,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has two ems that
qualify for reporting in this category. The deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and
OPEB are discussed in subsequent notes.

Net Position Flow Assumption

The District occasionally funds outlays for a particular purpose from both restricied (e.g.,
restricted bond or grant proceeds} and unrestricted resources. To calculate the amounts to
report as restricted net position and unrestricted net position in the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in
which the resources are considered 1o be applied. Consequently, 1t 1s the District’s policy to
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consider restricted net position to have been depleted before unrestricted net position is
apphed.

Fund Balance Flow Assumption

The District may fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted
resources (the total of commirted, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). To cakulate the
amourts to report as restricted, commutted, assigned, and unassigned fund balance 1n the
governmental fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made abowut the order in
which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the District’s policy to consider restricted
fund balance 10 have been depleted before using any of the components of unrestricted fund
balance. Further, when components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same
purpose, commurted fund balance 1s depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance.
Unassigned fund balance is applied last.

Fund Balance Policies

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of
any limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The District nself can
establish limrtations on the use of resources through either a commitment (commirted fund
balance) or an assignment {(assigned fund balance).

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the
specific purposes determined by a formal action of the District’s hughest level of decision-
making authority. The Board is the highest level of decision-making authoriry for the District
that can approve a commitment of fund balance. Once adopted, the imitation imposed by the
Board remains in place until a similar action is taken to remove or revise the hmitation. In July
2020, the Board gave 1ts approval to commt certain project balances during the budget process.

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the District for
specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed. The Board has by
vote authorized the Assistant Superimendent for Finance and the Accounting Supervisor to
assign fund balance. The Board may also assign fund balance as & does when appropriating
fund balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue and appropnations in the subsequent
fiscal year’s approprated budget. Unlike commitmerns, assignmemnts generally only exist
temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not normally have to be taken for the
removal of an assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action 15 essenttal to
either remove or revise a COmmitment.

G. Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

1.

Program Revenues

Amourts reported as program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or
services offered by the program, and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. All taxes, including those dedicated
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for specific purposes, and other imernally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues
rather than program revemues. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are
presented as general revenues. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues
identifies the extent to which each governmental function is self-financing or draws from the
general revenues of the District.

State Revenue Sources

Significant revenues from State sources for current operations inchude the Florida Educarion
Finance Program administered by the FDOE under the provisions of Section 1011.62, Flonida
Starwres. In accordance with this law, the District determines and reports the number of full-
time equivalent (FTE) students and related data to the FDOE. The FDOE performs certain
edit checks on the reported number of FTE and related data and calculates the allocation of
funds to the District. The District is permitted to amend its original reporting during specified
time periods following the date of the onginal reporting. The FDOE may also adjust
subsequent fiscal period allocations based upon an audit of the District’s compliance in
determining and reporting FTE and related data. Normally, such adjustments are treated as
reductions or additions of revenue in the fiscal year when the adjustments are made.

The State provides financial assistance to administer certain educational programs. SBE rules
require that revenue earmarked for certain programs be expended only for the program for
which the money is provided and require thar the money not expended as of the close of the
fiscal year be carried forward into the following fiscal year to be expended for the same
educational programs. The FDOE generally requires that these educational program revenues
be accounted for in the General Fund. A portion of the fund balance of the General Fund is
restricted in the governmental fund financial statements for the balance of categorical and
earmarked educational program resources.

The State allocates gross receipts taxes, generally known as Public Educarion Capital Ouutlay
money, to the District on an annual basis. The District is authorized to expend these funds
only upon applying for and receiving an encumbrance authorization from the FDOE.

A schedule of revenue from State sources for the current fiscal year is presented in a subsequent
note.

District Property Taxes

The Board is authorized by State lawto levy propertytaxes for district school operations, capital
improvements, and debt service.

Propenty taxes consist of ad valorem taxes on real and personal property within the District.
Property values are determined by the Santa Rosa County Property Appraiser, and property
taxes are collected by the Santa Rosa County Tax Collector.
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The Board adopted the 2020 tax levy on September 10, 202C. Tax bills are mailed m October
and taxes are payable between November 1 of the year assessed and March 31 of the following
year at discourntts of up to four percent for early payment.

Taxes become a lien on the property on January 1 and are delinquent on Apnl 1 of the year
following the year of assessment. State law provides for enforcement of collection of personal
property taxes by seizure of the property to satisfy unpaid taxes and for enforcement of
collection of real property taxes by the sale of interest-bearing tax certificates to satisfy unpaid
taxes. The procedures result in the collection of essentially all taxes prior to June 3C of the year
following the year of assessment.

Property tax revenues are recognized in the government-wide financial statements when the
Board adopts the tax levy. Propeny tax reverues are recognized in the governmental fund
financial statements when taxes are received by the District except that revenue 1s accrued for
taxes collected by the Santa Rosa County Tax Collector at fiscal year-end bur not yet remitted
to the District.

Millages and taxes levied for the current year are presented in a subsequemnt note.

Capital Outlay Surtax

In March 2007, the voters of Santa Rosa County approved a one-half cent school capital outlay
surtax on sales in the County for 10 years, effective October 1, 2008, to pay construction costs
of certain school facilities and related costs in accordance with Section 212.055(6), Flonda
Statutes. In March 2017, Santa Rosa County voters opted to continue the one-half cem school
capital owtlay surtax on sales through December 31, 2028,

Federal Revenue Sources

The District receives Federal awards for the enhancement of various educational programs.
Federal awards are generally received based on applications submitted to, and approved by,
various granung agencies. For Federal awards in which a claim to these grant proceeds is based
on incurring eligible expenditures, revenue is recognized to the extent that eligible expenditures
have been incurred. The FDOE may require adjustments to subsequent fiscal year expenditures
and related revenues based upon an audit of the Distnict’s compliance with applicable Federal
awards requirements. Normally, such adjustments are treated as reductions of expenditures and
related revenues in the fiscal year when the adjustments are made.

Compensated Absences

In the government-wide financial statements, compensated absences (Le., paid absences for
employee vacation leave and sick leave) are accrued as liabilities to the extent thar 1t is probable
that the benefits will result in termination payments. A hability for these amounts is reported
in the governmental fund financial statements only if 1 has matured, such as for occurrences
of employee resignations and retirements. The liabily for compensated absences includes
salary-related benefits, where applicable.
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Proprietary Fund Operating and Nonoperating Revenue and Expenses

The proprietary fund distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating xems.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with the proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenes of the District’s Inmternal Service Fund are charges for employee
health insurance premiums. Operating expenses of the District’s Internal Service Fund include
insurance claims and purchased services that include excess coverage premiums. All revenues
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

ACCOUNTING CHANGE

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 84. The District implemented GASB
Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Astivities, which establishes critenia for idemifying and reporting fiduciary
activiries of all state and local governments. The focus of the critenia generally is on (1) whether a
government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a
fiduciary relationship exists. Governments with activities meeting the criteria should present a statement
of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position. The District considers the
school internal funds to meet the criteria for reporting as fiduciary activities in the custodial funds. As
such, the beginning net position of the custodial funds was increased by $4,115,032.

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL ACTIVITIES AND FUNDS

A. Cash Deposits with Financial Institutions

Custodial Credit Risk. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that, in the evem of a bank failure,
the District’s deposits may not be returned to it. The District does not have a policy for custodial
credit risk. All bank balances of the District are fully insured or collateralized as required by Chapter
280, Florida Statutes.

B.

Investments

The District’s investments at June 30, 2021, are reported as follows:
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Investment Maturities Fair Value
SBA:
Florida PRIME (1) 50 Day Average $ 51,610,409
Debt Sarvice Accounts 6 Months 21,457
Total Investments $ 51,631,865

(1) This investment is reporied as z cash equivalents for financial statemnent reporting purposes.

¢ Fair Value Measurement

The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established
by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy 1s based on the valuation inputs
used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs
are significant unobservable inputs. The District’s investments in SBA debt service accounts,

totaling $21,457, are valued using Level 1 inputs.

o Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the nisk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. The District’s investment policy states that the highest priority shall be given
to the safery and liquidity of funds. The policy limits the types of authonzed mvestments as a
means of managing the exposure to fair value losses from increasing interest rates.

Florida PRIME uses a weighted average days to maturity (WAM). A portfolio’s WAM reflects
the average maturity in days based on final maturity or reset date, in the case of floating rate
instruments. WAM measures the sensitivity of the portfolio to interest rate changes.

For Florida PRIME, with regard to redemption gates, Section 218.409(8)(a), Florida Statutes,
states, “The principal, and any part thereof, of each account constituring the trust fund is
subject to payment at any time from the moneys in the trust fund. However, the executive
director may, in good faith, on the occurrence of an event that has a material impact on
liquidity or operations of the trust fund, for 48 hours limit contributions to or withdrawals
from the trust fund to ensure that the Board [State Board of Admunistration] can invest
moneys entrusted to it in exercising its fiduciary responsibility. Such action must be
immediately disclosed to all participants, the trustee, the Joint Legislative Auditing Commuttee,
and the Investment Advisory Council. The trustees shall convene an emergency meeting as
soon as practicable from the time the executive director has instituted such measures and
review the necessity of those measures. If the trustees are unable to convene an emergency
meeting before the expiration of the 48-hour moratorium on contributions and withdrawals,
the moratorium may be extended by the executive director until the trustees are able to meet
to review the necessity for the moratorium. If the trustees agree with such measures, the
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trustees shall vote to continue the measures for up to an additional 15 days. The trustees must
convene and vote to comtinue any such measures before the expiration of the time limir set,
but in no case may the time limit set by the trustees exceed 15 days.” As of June 30, 2021,
there were no redemption fees, maximum transaction amounts, or any other requirements
thar serve to limit a participant’s daily access to 100 percent of their account value.
e Credrt Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill ns
obligations.  Section 218.415(17), Flonda Statues, limuts investmemts to the Local
Governmemt Surplus Funds Trust Fund (Flonda PRIME), or any intergovemnmental
investment pool authorized pursuant to the Flonda Interlocal Cooperation Act as provided
in Section 163.01, Florida Stanutes; Securities and Exchange Commission registered money
market funds with the highest credit quality rating from a nationally recognized rating agency;
irterest-bearing time deposits or savings accounts in qualified public depositrories, as defined
in Section 280.02, Florida Statutes; and direct obligations of the United States Treasury. The
District’s investment policy limits investments to funds placed in qualified public deposirories,
financial deposit instruments insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, time
deposits, securities of the United States Government (including obligations of the United
States Treasury), and investment pools managed and directed by an approved agency of the
State.

The District’s investments in SBA debt service accounts are to provide for debt service
payments on bond debt issued by the SBE for the benefr of the District. The District relies
on policies developed by the SBA for managing imterest rate risk and credit risk for this
account. Disclosures for the Debt Service Accounts are included in the notes to the financial
staternents of the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

The District’s investment in Florida PRIME is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s.
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C. Changes in Capital Assets

Changes in capital assets are presented in the following table:

Beginning Deledons/ Ending
Balance Additions Transfers Balance
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Capital Asses Not Being Depreciaed:
Land 5 13243775 b 5476882 5 - $ 18,722,657
Land Improvements 7,672,136 59597 7731734
Construcdon in Progress 20,070,362 14,137,403 12271 34,195494
Tota Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 40,988,273 194673.882 12271 60,649,885
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Improvernents Other than Buildings 30,756,941 651,643 64,909 31,343,676
Buildings and Fixed Equipment 397,555,694 3939241 3,102,858 398,392,077
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment 17734712 1,730,788 859,884 18,605,616
Meotor Vehicles 3457 844 58,500 63357 3,452,987
Andio Visual Materials and
Computer Software 4,159,420 750,650 2671084 2238986
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 453,664,611 7,130,822 6,762,091 454,033 341
Less Accumulaed Depreciaion for
Improvements Other than Buildings 19,696,225 1061610 65979 20,691,857
Buildings and Fixed Equipment 160,113,312 9.613,894 2,391,851 167335354
Furnirure, Fixtures, and Equipment 11,837,677 1,304,509 771467 12,370,718
Motwor Vehicles 2035382 236,095 2922 2,268,555
Audio Visual Materials and
Computer Sofreware 3,498,397 1,116,190 2212533 2,402,054
Total Accumulated Depreciaton 197,180,954 13332298 5,444,753 205.068,538
Total Capital Assers Being Depreciaed, MNet 256,483,617 (6.201,476) 1,317,338 248,964,803

Governmenta Actvines Capital Assets, Net $ 297,471,890 $ 13472407 5 1329609 $ 309,614,688
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Function Amount
GOVERNMENTAL ACITVITIES

Instruction $ 363,042
Student Support Services 12,663
Instrucional Media Services 3,984
Instruction and Curreulum Development Servies 5,854
Instructional Staff Training 9,774
Instruaion-Related Technology 551,087
General Administration 353
Sdhool Administration 5,665
Fiscal Services 2,216
Food Serviees 117,400
Central Services 28,159
Student Transportation Serviges 12,093
Operation of Plant 8,507
Maintenance of Plant 983,386
Administrative Technology Services 110,875
Community Services 117,545
Unallocared 10,999,654
Total Depredarion Expense - Governmmental Aaivities $ 13,332,298

D. Retirement Plans
FRS — Defined Benefit Pension Plans
General Information about the FRS

The FRS was created in Chapter 121, Florida Statutes, 10 provide a defined benefit pension plan
for participating public employees. The FRS was amended in 1998 to add the Deferred Retirement
Option Program (DROP) under the defined benefi plan and amended in 2000 to provide a defined
contribution plan alternative to the defined benefit plan for FRS membess effective July 1, 2002.
This integrated defined contribution pension plan is the FRS Investment Plan. Chapter 112,
Florida Statutes, established the Retiree HIS Program, a cost-sharing muliple-employer defined
benefit pension plan, to assist retired members of any State-administered retirement system in
paying the costs of health insurance.

Essentially all regular employees of the District are eligible to enroll as members of the State-
administered FRS. Provisions relating to the FRS are established by Chapters 121 and 122, Florida
Stanutes; Chapter 112, Part TV, Florida Statutes; Chaprer 238, Florida Statures; and FRS Rules,
Chapter 608, Florida Administrative Code; wherein eligibility, contributions, and benefits are
defined and described in detail. Such provisions may be amended at any time by further action
from the Florida Legislature. The FRS is a single retirement system admimistered by the Florida
Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement, and consists of the two cost-sharing
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multiple-employer defined benefit plans and other nonintegrated programs. A comprehensive
annual financial report of the FRS, which includes its financial statements, required supplementary
information, actuarial report, and other relevant information, 15 available from the Flonda

Department of Management Services’ web site (www.dms.myflorida.com).

The District’s FRS and HIS pension expense totaled $29,586,080 for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2021.

FRS Pension Plan

Plan Degeription, The FRS Pension Plan (Plan) is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefir
pension plan, with a DROP for eligible employees. The general classes of membership are as
follows:

¢  Regular - Members of the FRS who do not qualify for membership n the other classes.

s Elected County Officers - Members who hold specified elecuve offices in local
BOVEITITent.

Employees enrolled in the Plan prior 1o July 1, 2011, vest at 6 years of creditable service and
employees enrolled in the Plan on or after July 1, 2011, vest at 8 years of credrable service. All
vested members, enrolled prior to July 1, 2011, are eligible for normal retirement benefits at age 62
or at any age after 30 years of service. All members enrolled in the Plan on or after July 1, 2011,
once vested, are eligible for normal retirement benefits at age 65 or any ume after 33 years of
creditable service. Employees enrolled in the Plan may include up 10 4 years of credn for milrary
service toward creditable service. The Plan also includes an early retrement provision; however,
there is a benefit reduction for each year a member retires before his or her normal retirement date.
The Plan provides retirement, disability, death benefits, and annual cost-of-living adjustments to
eligible participants.

DROP, subject 1o provisions of Section 121.091, Florida Statutes, permits employees eligible for
normal retirement under the Plan to defer receipt of monthly benefit paymems while continuing
employment with an FRS participating employer. An employee may participate in DROP for a
period not 10 exceed 60 months after electing to participate, except thar certain instructional
personnel may participate for up to 96 months. During the period of DROP participation, deferred
monthly benefits are held in the FRS Trust Fund and accrue interest. The net pension liability does
not include amoumnts for DROP participants, as these members are considered retired and are not
accruing additional pension benefits.

Benefits Provided, Benetits under the Plan are computed on the basis of age and/or years of service,
average final compensation, and service credit. Credit for each year of service is expressed as a
percentage of the average final compensation. For members initially enrolled before July 1, 2011,
the average final compensation is the average of the 5 highest fiscal years’ earnings; for members
mnitially enrolled on or after July 1, 2011, the average final compensation 1s the average of the 8
highest fiscal years’ earnings. The total percentage value of the benefrr received is determined by
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calculating the total value of all service, which is based on the retirement class to which the member
belonged when the service credit was earned. Members are eligible for in-line-of-duty or regular
disability and survivors” benefits. The following table shows the percentage value for each year of
service credit earned:

Class, Initial Enrollment, and Retirement Age/Years of Service Percent Value

Regular members initially enrolled before July 1, 2011

Retirement up to age 62 or up to 30 years of service 1.60
Retirement at age 63 or with 31 years of service 1.63
Retirement at age 64 or with 32 years of service 1.65
Retirement ar age 65 or with 33 or more years of service 168

Regulat members initially enrolled on or after July 1, 2011

Retirement up to age 65 or up to 33 years of service 1.60
Retirement at age 66 or with 34 years of service 1.63
Retirement at age 67 or with 35 years of service 1.65
Retirement at age 68 or with 36 or more years of service 1.68
Elected County Officers 3.00

As provided in Section 121.1C1, Florida Statures, if the member is mmially enrolled in the FRS
before July 1, 2011, and all service credit was accrued before July 1, 2011, the annual cost-of-living
adjustment is 3 percent per year. If the member is inttially enrolled before July 1, 2011, and has
service credit on or after July 1, 2C11, there is an individually calculated cost-of-living adjustment.
The annual cost-of-living adjustment is a proportion of 3 percent deternuned by dividing the sum
of the pre-July 2011 service credit by the total service credit at retremen multiphed by 3 percent.
Plan members initially enrolled on or after July 1, 2011, will not have a cost-of-Iiving adjustment
after retirement.
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Contributions. The Florida Legislature establishes contribution rates for participaring employers and
employees.  Contrbution rates during the 202C-21 fiscal year were as follows:

Percent of Gross Salary

Class Emplovee Emplover (1)
FRS, Regular 3.00 10.00
FRS, Elected Gounty Officers 3.00 49.18
DROP - Applicable 10

Members from All of the Above (asses 0.00 16.98
FRS, Reenploved Retiree ) L))

ll'fl) Employer rates include 1.66 percent for the postemployment health insurance subsidy.
Also, employer rates, other than for DROP participants, include 0.06 percemt for
administrative costs of the Investment Plan.

'Ez) Conrribuzion rates are dependent upon retirement class in which reemployed.

The District’s contributions to the Plan totaled $11,714,387 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

Pension Liabilities. Pension Escpense. and Deferred Outflows of Resonrces and Deferred Inflows of Revources Related
10 Pensions. At June 30, 2021, the District reported a habiliry of $121,318,714 for s proportionate
share of the Plan’s net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020,
and the total pension liability used 1o calculate the net pension liability was derermned by an
actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2020. The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liabiliry
was based on the District’s 2019-2020 fiscal year contributions relative to the 2019-2020 fiscal year
contributions of all participating members. At June 30, 2020, the District’s proportionate share was
0.27991 percent, which was an increase of 0.00441C from its proportionate share measured as of
June 30, 2019,

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized Plan pension expense of
$25,129,775. In addition, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

. Deferred Outflows ~ Deferred Inflows

Description : of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience s .ﬁsf?feﬂf'_‘.ﬁm_ -
Change ofassymptions . 21862547 -
Netdifference between projectedandactual
_earnings on FRS pension plan investments ... 7223433 -__m_ e e
Changes In proportion and differences between
_ District FRS contributions and proportionate 2053055 1435869
share of contributions -

District FRS contributions subsequenttothe .
- measurement date 11,714,387 -

Total $ 47,596,536 S 1,435,669
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The deferred owflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions to the
Plan subsequent to the measurement date, totaling $11,714,387, will be recognized as a reduction
of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

nlgis“cal Year Ending June 30 Amount
2021 o _..$ 6748,359.60
2022 R _......10,814,530.59
2023 .. 2538,430.43
2024 _.._...>883,021.39
2025 _ . 1,462,137.82
Total S 34,446,480

Actuarial Assumptigns. The total pension liability in the July 1, 2020, actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all penods included in the

measurement:

Inflation 2.40 percent

Salary Increases 3.25 percert, average, including inflation

Investment rate of return 6.80 percent, net of pension plan investment expense,
including inflation

Mortality rates were based on the PUB-2010 base table, projected generationally with Scale MP-
2018.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2020, valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial expenence study for the period July 1, 2013, through June 30, 2018.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was not based on historical
returns, but instead is based on a forward-looking capital market economic model. The allocation
policy’s description of each asset class was used to map the target allocation to the asset classes
shown below. Each asset class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions
and includes an adjustment for the inflation assumption. The target allocation and best estimates
of artthmetic and geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the
following table:
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Compound
Annual Annual
Target Arithmetic {Geometric) Standard
Asset Class Allocation (1) Return Return Deviation
FixedIncome .. 180  30%  29% 35%
GlobalEquity . ... 542%  80% LBT%  17.%

o ox 4% 58 1l7%
8l% .. BT%
3% .. 69%

Real Estate (Property}
PrivateEquity o 111% . 108%
Strategic Investments 55%
Tbtal

Assumed Inflation - Mean

() As outlined in the Plan's investmentpolicy. .
Discount Rate. The discount rate used 1o measure the total pension liabiliry was 6.80 percent. The
Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefnt
payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the discount rate for calculating the
total pension liability is equal to the long-term expected rate of retum. The discount rate used in
the 2020 valuation was updated from 6.90 percent to 6.80 percent.

Sensitiviry of the Dirtricts Proportionate Share of the Net Position Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate. The
following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liabiliry calculated using the
discount rate of 6.80 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate thar is 1 percentage-point lower (5.80
percent) or 1 percentage-point higher (7.80 percent) than the current rare:

1% Current 1%
Dectease Discount Rate Increase
(5.80%) {6.80%) (7.80%)

District’s proportionate share of
the net pension liabiliry $193,725,599 $121,318,714 $60,844,170
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Pension Plan Fiducigrs Net Position. Detailed informarion about the Plan’s fiduciary net position
is available in the separately issued FRS Pension Plan and Other State Administered Systems
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

HIS Pension Plan

Plan Deserition, The HIS Pension Plan (HIS Plan) is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan established under section 112.363, Florida Statutes, and may be amended
by the Florida Legislature at any time. The benefit is a monthly payment to assist retirees of
State-administered retirement systems in paying their health insurance costs and is administered
by the Florida Department of Management Services, Division of Retiremen.

Benefits Provided. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, eligible retirees and beneficiaries
received a monthly HIS payment of $5 for each year of creditable service completed at the time
of retirement, with a minimum HIS payment of $30 and a maximum HIS payment of $150C per
month, pursuant to Section 112.363, Florida Starutes. To be eligible 1o receive 2 HIS Plan
benefit, a retiree under a State-administered retirement system must provide proof of health
insurance coverage, which may include Federal Medicare.

Contributions. The HIS Plan is funded by required contributions from FRS participating
employers as set by the Florida Legislature. Employer contributions are a percentage of gross
compensation for all active FRS members. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the
contribution rate was 1.66 percent of payroll pursuant to section 112.363, Florida Starutes. The
District contributed 100 percent of its statutorily required comributions for the current and
preceding 3 years. HIS Plan contnibutions are deposited in a separate trust fund from which
payments are authorized. HIS Plan benefits are not guaranteed and are subject to annual
legislative appropriation. In the event the legislative appropriation or available funds fail 1o
provide full subsidy benefits to all participants, benefits may be reduced or canceled.

The District’s comributions to the HIS Plan totaled $2,387,284 for the fiscal year June 30, 2021.

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense. and Deferred Quiflpws of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions. At June 30, 2021, the District reported a net pension liability of $49,869,839
for its proportionate share of the HIS Plan’s net pension liability. The current portion of the
new pension liability is the District’s proportionate share of benefit payments expected to be
paid within 1 year, net of the District’s proportionate share of the HIS Plan’s fiduciary net
position available to pay that amount. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30,
2020, and the total pension liability used 1o calculate the net pension lLiabiliry was determined
byan actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2020. The District’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability was based on the District’s 2019-20 fiscal year contributions relative to the total 2019-
20 fiscal year contributions of all participating members. At June 30, 202C, the District’s
proportionate share was 0.408439835 percent, which was an increase of 0.005213 from its
proportionate share measured as of June 30, 2019.
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For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized the HIS pension expense of
$3,735,068. In addition, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferted
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

. R " Deferred Outflows : Deferred Inflows
:Description : of Resources : of Resources
iD"fferences between expectedandacal ' $ 2038979 $ 38472
%_Cha nge of 5%5!!![’_"0“5 _ I 5_352423 ....2899,737
l[ﬂg_'g_g_u_ffg_[g"r]_gg_‘between projected and actual |

earnings on HIS pension plan investments s 39816 -
E_(_:I_‘!_?_Q_EEENH'I_E!EEEEIPH and differences between

District HIS contributions and proportionate T
share of HIS contributions 7 o - 2,667,888 : ] ~ 9igag-
éDIStrlCt contributions subsequentto the T
measurement date 2,387,284 - -
Total ' $ 12,497,395 $ 3,856,627

The deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions to
the HIS Plan subsequent to the measurement date, totaling $2,387,284, will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

‘Fiscal Year EndingJune 30 - Amount
202 - 133688792;
2023 S 468,995.60

2024 - o 960,804.43

205 . 1,064130.78
Thereafter ' , 816,908.83 :
Total R 6,253,484

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the July 1, 2020, actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Inflation 2.40 percent
Salary increases 3.25 percent, average, including inflation
Municipal bond rate 2.21 percent
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Mortality rates wete based on the PUB-2010 base table, projected generationally with Scale
MP-2018. This is a change from the prior year mortality assumption which was based on the
Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale BB tables.

While an experience study had not been completed for the HIS Plan, the actuarial assumptions
that determined the total pension liability for the HIS Plan were based on certain results of the
most recent experience study for the FRS plan.

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 2.21 percent. In
general, the discount rate for calculating the total pension liability is equal to the single rate
equivalent to discounting at the long-term expected rate of return for benefit payments prior
to the projected depletion date. Because the HIS benefit is essentially funded on a pay-as-you-
go basis, the depletion date is considered to be immediate, and the single equivalent discount
rate is equal to the municipal bond rate selected by the HIS Plan sponsor. The Bond Buyer
General Obligation 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index was adopted as the applicable municipal
bond index. The discount rate changed from 3.50 percent to 2.21 percent.

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate.

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated

using the discount rate of 2.21 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-
point lower (1.21 percent) or 1 percentage-point higher (3.21) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(1.21%) (2.21%) (3.21%)
District’s proportionate share of
the net pension lability $57,647,308 $49,869,839 $43,504,003

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about the HIS Plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued FRS Pension Plan and Other State Administered
Systems Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

FRS — Defined Contabution Pension Plan

The SBA administers the defined contribution plan officially titled the FRS Investment Plan
(Investment Plan). The Investment Plan is reported in the SBA’s annual financial statements

and in the State of Florida Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

As provided in Sectdon 121.4501, Florida Statutes, eligible FRS members may elect to
participate in the Investment Plan in lieu of the FRS defined benefit plan. District employees
partictpating in DROP are not eligible to participate in the Investment Plan. Employer and
employee contributions, including amounts contributed to individual member’s accounts, are
defined by law, but the ultimate benefit depends in part on the performance of investment
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defined by law, but the ultimarte benefit depends in part on the performance of investment
funds. Retirement benefits are based upon the value of the member's account upon revrement.
Benefit terms, including contribution requirements, for the Investment Plan are established
and may be amended by the Flonda Legislature. The Investment Plan is funded with the same
employer and employee contribution rates that are based on salary and membership class
(Regular, Elected County Officers, etc.}, as the FRS defined benefnt plan. Contributions are
directed to individual member accounts, and the individual members allocate contributions and
account balances among various approved investment choices. Costs of administering the
Investment Plan, including the FRS Financial Guidance Program, are funded through an
employer contribution of 0.06 percent of payroll and by forfeited benefis of Investment Plan
members. Allocations to the Investment Plan member accounts during the 2020-2021 fiscal
year were as follows:

Percent of
Gross
Class Compensation
FRS, Regular 6.30
FRS, Elected Counry Officers 11.34

For all membership classes, employees are immediately vested int their own contributions and are
vested after 1 year of service for employer contributions and investment earnings, regardless of
membership class. If an accumulated benefit obligation for service credit originally earned under
the FRS Pension Plan is transferred to the Investment Plan, the member must have the years of
service required for FRS Pension Plan vesting (including the service credit represented by the
transferred funds) to be vested for these funds and the earnings on the funds. Nonvested
employer contributions are placed in a suspense account for up to 5 years. If the employee returns
to FRS-covered employment within the 5-year period, the employee will regain control over their
account. If the employee does not return within the 5-year period, the employee will forfert the
accumulated account balance. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the information for the
amount of forfeitures was unavailable from the SBA; however, management believes that these
amounts, if any, would be immaterial to the District,

After termination and applying to receive benefits, the member may rollover vested funds to
another qualified plan, structure a periodic payment under the Investment Plan, receive a lump-
sum distribution, leave the funds invested for future distnibution, or any combination of these
options, Disability coverage is provided in which the member may erther transfer the account
balance 10 the FRS Pension Plan when approved for disabiliry retirement to receive guaranteed
lifetime monthly benefits under the FRS Pension Plan, or remain in the Investment Plan and rely
upon that account balance for retirement income.

The District’s Investment Plan pension expense totaled $4,889,534 for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2021,
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Other Postemployment Benefit Qbligations

Plan Description. The Other Postemployment Benefis Plan (OPEB Plan) is a single-
employer defined benefit plan admumstered by the District that provides OPEB for all
employees who satisfy the Distnct’s retirement eligibiliry provisions. Pursuant to Section
112.0801, Florida Statutes, employees who retire from the District are eligible to participate in
the District’s healthcare plan. Retirees and their eligible dependents shall be offered the same
health and hospitalizarion insurance coverage as is offered 1o active employees at a premium
cost of no more than the premium cost applicable to active employees. The District subsidizes
the premium rates paid by retirees by allowing them to participate in the OPEB Plan at reduced
or blended group {implicitly subsidized) premium rates for both active and retired employees.
These rates provide an implictt subsidy for retirees because reuree healthcare costs are generally
greater than active employee healthcare costs, The OPEB Plan contnburion requiremems and
benefit terms of the District and the OPEB Plan members are established and may be amended
through action from the Board. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in
paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75.

Benefits Provided. The OPEB Plan provides healthcare insurance benefis for retirees and
their dependents. The OPEB Plan only provides an implicrt subsidy as described above.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms. As of June 30, 2019, the following employees were
covered by the benefrt terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 288
Activeemployees L 3,194

Total OPEB Liability. The District’s total OPEB liability of $21,962,874 was measured as of
June 30, 2020, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, updated 10
June 30, 2020,

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs. The total OPEB liabiliy was determuned using
the following actuarial assumptions and other npurs, applied to all periods included in the
measurement, unless otherwse specified:

Inflation Rate 2.5 percent

Salary Increase Rate 4 percent

DiscountRate 2.66 percent

Initial TrendRate 7.5 percent

Ultimate Trend Rate 4 percent

Years to Ultimate 55years

All morality rates were based on the RP-2000 mortality tables.
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Monality - Healthy Lives: For female lives, 100 percent of the annuitant white-collar table was
used. For male (non-special risk) lives, a 50 percent annuitant white collar table, 50 percent
annuitant blue-collar table blend was used. For male special risk lives, a 10 percent annuitant
white- collar table, 90 percent annuitant blue-collar table blend was used. All tables include
fully generational adjustments for mortality improvements using improvement scale BB,

Discourt Rate: Given the District’s decision not to fund the program, all furure benefit
payments were discounted using a high-quality municipal bond rate of 2.66 percent. The high-
quality municipal bond rate was based on the S&P Municipal Bond 20 Year High Grade Rate
Index as published by S&P Dow Jones Indices nearest the measurement date. The S&P
Municipal 20 Year High Grade Rate Index consists of bonds in the S&P Municipal Bond Index
with a maturity of 20 years. Eligible bonds must be rared at least AA by Standard & Poor’s
Ratings Services, Aa2 by Moody’s or AA by Fitch. If there are multiple ratings, the lowest rating
1s used.

Changes in Total OPEB Liability.

Amount
Balanceatjune 30,2020 . .319,894,252
Changes forthe fiscal year: e e
semicecost .. L/6B2,065
. _Changes of assumptions . 239123
Benefit payments (549,720)
Net Changes 1,968,622

Balance atlune 30, 2021 $21,962,874

Changes of assumprions reflect a change in the discount rate from 2.79 percent for the
reporting period ended June 30, 2020, o 2.66 percent for the reporting period ended June 30,
2021.

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate. The following
table presents the total OPEB liabiliry of the District, as well as what the Districts’ total OPEB

liability would be if 1t were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage poirt lower
(1.66 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (3.66 percent) than the current rate:

A% . Cument 1% .

_Decrease " DiscountRate  Increase
(L66%) | (2.66%) | (3.66%)

$ 23889307 - $ 21,962,874 $ 20,189,542

Total OPEB Liability .

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates.
The following table presents the total OPEB liability of the District, as well as whar the

District’s total OPEB Hability would be if 1t were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates
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that are 1 percentage point lower (6.5 percent decreasing to 3 percent) or 1 percentage point
higher (8.5 petcent decreasing to 5 percent) than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

Healthcare
1% Decrease Cost Trend 1% Increase
(6.5% Rates (7.5% {8.5%
decreasing decreasing decreasing
to 3%) to 4%) to 5%)
Total OPEB Liability S 19,307,094 S5 21,962,874 S$ 25,115,061

OPEB_Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to OPEB, For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized
OPEB expense of $1,980,931. At June 30, 2021, the District reported deferred outflows of
tresources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Qutflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and
actual experience S 688,318 § -
Change of assumptions 215,211 2,824,192
Employer contributions susbequent
to the measurement date 594,649 -
Total S 1,498,178 S 2,824,192

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Fiscal Yearending june 30 Amount

2022 $ (308,288}
2023 $ (308,288)
2024 S (308,288)
2025 $  (308,288)
2026 S (308,284}
Thereafter 5 (379,227)
Total $ {1,920,663)

Construction and er Sionifican mmitments

Construction Contracts. The following is a schedule of major construction contract
commitments at June 30, 2021:

Contract Completed Balance
Project Amount to Date Committed
East Bay K-8 ] 33,063,271 $  32753,426 309,845
East Bay K-8 Covered PH Building 830,517 363,131 467,386
Wallace Lake, Pace Area K-8 3,565,504 1,839,232 1,526,272
Hobbs HVAC/Energy Upgrades 1,714,261 1,272,938 441,323
3 38,073,553 $ 36,228,727 2,744,826
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Encumbrances. Appropriations m governmental funds are encumbered upon issuance of
purchase orders for goods and services. Even though appropnations lapse at the end of the
fiscal year, unfilled purchase orders of the current year are carried forward and the next fiscat
year's appropnations are hikewise encumbered.

The following 1s a schedule of encumbrances at June 30, 2021:

Major Funds
Special Special
Special Revenue - Revenue - Capital
Revenue - Other Federal ED Projects - Capital Nonmajor Total
Food Federal Swbilization  Local Capital Projects - Governmental Governmental
General Service Programs Fund I mprovement COther Funds Funds
§ 740797 8§ 262214 § 205249 § 172852 § 535014 § 3883042 8§ 187972 § 5987240

Risk Management Programs

The District 1s exposed 1o various risks of loss related to tors; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omussions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
District limits 1ts exposure to these risks through its membership in the Florida School Board
Insurance Trust (Trust). The Trust is a self-insurance fund of Florida school boards established
under the authority set forth in Section 1001.42, Florida Statutes, and was established for the
purpose of pooling certain exposures (e.g. property, casualty, and workers’ compensation) of
participating districts. If a participating district withdraws or termunates participation in the
Trust, and fts claims exceed loss fund contributions from premiuins paid, the Trust may request
additional funds or return the open claims to that district. Through its participation in the
Trust, the District has acquired various types of insurance coverage including property, general
and automotive liability, workers’ compensation, errors and omussions, boller and machinery,
crime, special events, pollution, legal hiability, school crisis risk, and cyber liability coverage.
Catastrophic student accident, flood and storage tank liability msurance are provided through
purchased commercial insurance.

The District provides self-insured employee heakth coverage. The District entered into an
agreement with a stop loss insurance company to provide specific excess coverage of claim
amounts above $175,000 on an individual claim basis and aggregate excess coverage of $1
million, Aggregate excess coverage s paid out when total claims annually, minus specific excess
coverage, exceed 100 percent of the overall variable claims cost. The District has contracted
with an insurance administrator to administer the self-insurance programs, including the
processing, investigating, and payment of claims. A liability in the amount of $2,149,000 was
actuarially determined to cover the estimated incurred but not reported nsurance claims
payable at June 30, 2021.

Dental, vision, long-term disability, short-term disability, hospital indemnity, crivical illness,
accident, and life insurance coverages are provided through commercial insurance.
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Prior to July 1, 1997, the District was self-insured for worker’s compensation exposures up to
specified limits. At June 30, 2021, a liability in the amount of $153,175 was recorded to cover
future claims payments relating to this former self-insurance program. This amount is recorded
as a deposit payable on the accompanying Statement of Net Position and Balance Sheet -
Governmental Funds.

Settled claims resulting from the risks described above have not exceeded commercial
insurance coverage in any of the past 3 fiscal years.

The following schedule reptesents the changes in claims liability for the past 2 fiscal years for
the Distrtict’s self-insurance program:

Current Year

Beginning of Claims and Balance at
Fiscal Year Changes in Claims Fiscal

Fiscal Year Liability Estimates Payments Year End
Workers Compensation:
2019-20 $ 173,860 $ (14,665) $ - $ 159,194
2020-21 159,194 (6,019) - 153,175
Employee Health:
2019-20 § 2,284 459 $ (12,387,993) $ 11,809,534 $ 1,706,000
2020-21 1,706,000 {13,766,557) 14,209,557 2,149,060

H. Long-Term Liabilities
1. Certificates of Participation

The District entered into financing arrangements with the Santa Rosa School Board
Leasing Cotporation (Leasing Corporation) whereby the District has authorized several
certificates of participation debt issues, characterized as lease-purchase agreements. The
following schedule describes the status of these issues at June 30, 2021:

Original Principal
Series Amount Paid to Date Balance
2014 $20,520,000 $5,445,000 $15,075,000
2019 30,275,000 880,000 29,395,000
Total $44,470 000

The ground lease on the properties associated with the Series 2014 Certificates ends on the
earlier of (a) the date on which the Series 2014 Certificates have been paid in full or
provision for their payment has been made, or (b) 10 years from the final maturity date of
the Series 2014 Certificates and any series of certificates refunding the Series 2014
Certificates. It is not expected that the ground lease term with respect to the properties
associated with the Series 2014 Certificates will exceed February 01, 2031. The lease



SANTA ROSA COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — PAGE 18
JUNE 30, 2021
payments ate payable by the District semiannually, on February 1 and August 1 at interest
rates ranging from 3 percent to 5 percent for the Series 2014 Certificates. The Series 2014
Certificates were issued to refund the Refunded Certificates and thereby refinance a
portion of the cost of acquisition, construction and installation of the Consolidated 2006

Project as well as to pay costs associated with the issuance of the Series 2014 Certificates.

The ground lease on the properties associated with the Series 2019 Certificates ends on the
earlier of (a) the date on which the Series 2019 Certificates have been paid in full or
provision for theit payment has been made, or (b} 10 years from the final maturity date of
the Series 2019 Certificates and any series of certificates refunding the Series 2019
Certificates. It is not expected that the ground lease term with respect to the properties
associated with the Series 2019 Certificates will exceed February 1, 2044. The lease
payments are payable by the District semiannually, on February 1 and August 1 at intetest

rates ranging from 3 percent to 5 percent.

The propetties covered by the ground leases are, together with the improvements
constructed thereon from the financing proceeds, leased back to the District. If the
District fails to renew the leases and to provide for the rent payments through to term, the
master lease-purchase agreement provides for several remedies that are available to the
Leasing Corporation, including taking possession of the properties and selling or re-letting
its interest therein.
The District properties included in the vatious ground leases under these arrangements
include:
Series 2019:

® Fast Bay K-8 School — New Construction
Sertes 2014:

e Navarre High School ~ Gymnasium, Classrooms and Maintenance Building

e Navarre High School — Cafeteria Expansion, Fieldhouse and North Wing

Addition

e Thomas 1. Sims Middle School — Classroom Spaces and Accoutrements

¢ Bennett C. Russell Elementary School

¢ Woodlawn Beach Middle School — Classroom Additions
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agreement together with the present value of minimum lease payments as of June 30:

JUNE 30, 2021

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 Total Principal Interest
2021 $ 4,026,500 ¥ 2,040,000 $ 1,986,500
2022 3,984,500 2,100,000 1,884,500
2023 4,089,500 2,310,000 1,779,500
2024 4,089,000 2,425000 1,664,000
2025 4,092,750 2,550,000 1,542,750
2026-2030 19,307,200 13,595,000 5,712,200
2031-2035 9,582,500 6,185,000 3,397,500
2036-2040 9,572,750 7,850,000 1,722,750
2041-2044 5,743,200 5,415,600 328,200
Total Minimum Lease Payments 64,487,900 44,470,000 20,017,900
Plus: Unamortized Premium 5,225,052 5,225,052 -
‘T'otal Certificates of Participation $ 69,712,952 $ 49,695,052 $ 20,017,900
Bonds Payable
Bonds payable at June 30, 2021, are as follows:
Armount Interest Raves Annual Maturity
Bond Type Outstanding (Percent) To
State School Bonds:
Series 20114, Refunding $ 100,000 3-5 2023
Series 2014A, Refunding 137,000 3-5 2025
Series 2017A, Refunding 106,000 5 2026
Series 2020A, Refunding 597,000 2-5 2030
Bonds Payable 940,000
Plus: Unamortized Premium 167,767

Total Bonds Payable

§ 1i1071767
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The various bonds were issued to finance capital outlay projects of the District. The

following is a description of the bonded debt issues:

» State School Bonds

These bonds are issued by the SBE on behalf of the District. The bonds mature
serially and are secured by a pledge of the District’s portion of the State-assessed
motor vehicle license tax. The State’s full faith and credit is also pledged as security
for these bonds. Principal and interest payments, investment of debt service fund

resources, and compliance with reserve requirements are administered by the SBE

and the SBA.

Annual requirements to amortize bonded debt outstanding as of June 30, 2021, are as

follows:
Fiscal Year Ending June 30 Total Principal lntetest
State School Bonds:
2022 201,810 % 159,000 $ 42,810
2023 199,860 164,000 35,860
2024 150,370 120,000 30,370
2025 133,370 109,000 24,370
2026 110,400 91,000 19,400
20272030 335,050 297,000 38,050
Total State School Bends 1,130,860 $ 940,000 $ 190,860
Changes in Long-Term Liabilities
The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities:
Description Bakunce Additions Deductions Balance One Year
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Certificates of Pacticipation Payable L) 46,435,000 § 1,965,000 4470000 § 2,040,000
Unamortized Prermsum on Certificates 5476411 251,359 5,205,052 255,324
Total Certificates of Participation Payable 1911 Al 2.316,359 9,695,052 2295124
Bonds Payable 1,088,000 148,000 240,000 159,000
Unamortized Peetnium on Bonds 200,288 32,520 167,767 32,520
Total Bonds Payable 1,288 288 180,528 1,807,767 191,320
Compensated Absences Paable 22,676,308 5,845,561 11,960 889 16561470 5004785
Net Pension Lizblility 139,996,641 85,483,560 54,201,648 171,188,553 -
Other Postemployment Benefirs Payable 19,994,252 2,518,342 549,720 21,962,874
Total Gavernmental Activitics $ 235861, PIBT2 § 6919913 260515725 § 811,628

For the governmental activities, compensated absences and other postemployment

benefits are generally liquidated with resources of the General Fund.
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I. Fund Balance Reporting

In addition to cornmitied and assigned fund balance categories discussed in Note L.F.10.,, fund
balances may be classified as follows:

¢ Nonspendable Fund Balance. Nonspendable fund balance is the net current
financial resources that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable
form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Generally, not
in spendable form means that an item is not expected to be converted to cash.

Restricted Fund Balance. Restricted fund balance is the portion of fund balance
on which constraints have been placed by creditors, grantors, comtributors, laws or
regularions of other governments, constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation.
Restricted fund balance places the most binding level of constraint on the use of
fund balance.

¢ Unassigned Fund Balance. The unassigned fund balance is the portion of fund
balance that is the residual classification for the General Fund. This balance
represents amounts that have not been assigned to other funds and that have not
been restricted, committed, or assigned for specific purposes.

J. Revenues

L

Schedule of State Revenue Sources

The following is a schedule of the District’s State revenue for the 2020-2021 fiscal year:

Sources Amount

Florida Education Finance Program $ 135,228,647
Categorical Educational Program - Class Size Reduction 31,328,048
Worldorce Development Program 2,292,116
Motor Vehicle License Tax (Capital Outlay and Debt Service) 982,194
Voluntary Prekindergarten Program 516,930
Food Service Supplement 108,130
Charter School Capital Outlay 67,078
E ducational Facilities Security 61,361
Mobile Home License Tax 41,700
Miscellaneous 1,468,637
Total 3 172,094,841

Accounting policies relating to certain State revenue sources are described in Note 1.G.2.
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2. Property Taxes

The following is a summary of millages and taxes levied on the 2020 tax roll for the 2020-
2021 fiscal year:

Millages Taxes Levied

General Fund
Nonvoted School Tax:

Required Local Effort 3.802 § 47,442,095

Basic Discretionary Local Effort 0.748 9,333,689
Capital Projects Funds - L.ocal Capital Improvement Fund
Nonvoted Tax:

Local Capital Improvements 1.500 18,717,292
Total 6.050 $ 75,493,076

Interfund Transfers

The following is a summary of interfund transfers reported in the fund financial statemencs:

Interfund
Funds Transfers In Transfers Qut
Major:
General $ 4,944,394 s 370,577
Special Revenue: Other Federal Programs 370,577
Capital Projects:
Local Gapital Improvement - 8,589,751
Orcher - 415,456
Nonrmajor Governmental 4,060,812 -
Total 3 9,375,783 ) 9,375,783

The Distnct made transfers to the General Fund to cover payments on the student
transportation contract, pay for certain property and casualty insurance premiums, cover
payments for computer upgrades, to facilitate the transfer of Stare funds to its charter schools,
1o cover five year survey and growth management study, and to pay for network infrastructure.
The District made transfess to the Special Revenue - Other Federal Programs Fund to cover
the District’s portion of Reserve Officer Training Corps. The District made transfers to the
nonrmajor governmental funds to facilitate debt service paymemts on ceruficates of
participation.
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IV. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The District is building a new K-8 school in the north end of Santa Rosa County. A Series
2021 Centificate of Participation in the amount of $12,505,000 was secured in July 2021 to fund
the building of this new school.

V. CONTINGENCIES

'The District is involved in several pending and threatened legal actions. The range of potential
loss from all such claims and actions, as estimated by District management and the Board’s
legal counsel, should not materially affect the financial condition of the District.
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SANTA ROSA COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2019

BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The Board follows procedures established by Stare law and State Board of Educarion (SBE) rules
in establishing budget balances for governmental funds, as described below:

b

Budgets are prepared, public hearings are held, and original budgers are adopted annually
for all governmental fund types in accordance with procedures and time intervals prescribed
by State law and SBE rules.

Appropriations are controlled at the object level (e.g., salaries, purchased services, and capital
outlay) within each activity (e.g., instruction, student transportation services, and school
administration) and may be amended by resolution at any Board meeting prior to the due
date for the annual financial report.

Budgets are prepared using the same modified accrual basis as is used to account for
governmental funds.

Budgetary information is integrated into the accounting system, and, to facilitate budger
control, budget balances are encumbered when purchase orders are issued. Appropriations
lapse at fiscal year end, and encumbrances outstanding are honored from the subsequent
fiscal year's appropriations.
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SANTA ROSA COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2019

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE DISTRICT’S TOTAL OTHER
POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meet the criterta in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No.
75 to pay related benefrs.

Covered employee payroll was projected one year forward from the valuation date for the reporting
period ending June 3C, 2021,

Changes of Assurptions. Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of changes in
the discount rate each period. The GASB 75 discount rate is based on the S&P 20-year municipal
bond rate published as of June 30, 202C.

The following are the discount rates used i each period:
Fiscal Year Ending June 30,2021 2.66%

Fiscal Year Ending June 30,2020  2.79%
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2019 3.87%

JFiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018  3.58%

Fiscal YearEnding June 30,2017 _ 2.85%

Benefit Payments. Expected net benefrt payments produced by the valuation model are shown in the
table above.

SCHEDULE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY AND SCHEDULE OF
CONTRIBUTIONS - FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM PENSION PLAN

Changes of Assumptions. The long-term expected rate of return was decreased from 6.9 percent to 6.8
percent.

SCHEDULE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY AND SCHEDULE OF
CONTRIBUTIONS - HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY PENSION PLAN

Changes of Assumptions. The municipal rate used to determine total pension kability was decreased
from 3.50 percent to 2.21 percent, and the mortality assumption was changed from the
Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale BB tables to the PUB-2010 base table, projected
generationally with Scale MP-2018.




DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Exhibit E-1
Page 21

Budgeted Amounts

Vanance with

Account Actual Final Budget -
Number Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)

REVENUES

Federal Direct 3100 646,843 .40 1,006,058.58 1.006.058.58 0.00

Federal Through State and Local 3200 1.000.000.00 962.180.86 962.180.86 0.00

State Sources 3300 170.783,321.70 169,903,554.33 169.728.460.66 (175.093.67)

Local Sources:

Property Taxes Levied, Tax Redemptions and Excess Fees for 3411, 3421,

Qperational Purposes 3423 54.296,001.00 54,817.377.63 54.817.377.63 0.00

Property Taxes Levied, Tax Redemptions and Excess Fees for 3412, 3421,

Debt Service 3423 0.00 0.00

Property Taxes Levied, Tax Redemptions and Excess Fees for 3413, 3421.

Capital Projects 3423 0.00 0.00

Local Sales Taxes 3418, 3419 0.00 0.00

Charges for Service - Food Service 345X 0.00 0.00

Impact Fees 349 0.00 0.00

Other Local Revenue 3,811,223 41 4.064.944 74 4.007,367.84 (57.576.90)
Total Local Sources 3400 58.107.224.41 58.882.322.37 58,824,745.47 (57.576.90)

Total Revenues 230.537.389.51 230,754.116. 14 230,521,445.57 (232,670.57)

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Instruction 5000 160,273,536.94 149,956,022 08 143,081,346.77 6,874,675.31
Student Support Services 6100 15,166,830.74 10,711,347.21 10.106.700.17 604.647.04
Instructional Media Services 6200 2.933,852.15 2.810.816.95 2.496.394.72 31442223
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 6300 4.003.617.70 4.717.700.92 4,675.991.14 41,709.78
Instructional Staff Training Services 6400 2,432,705.89 1.649.847 06 1.304,163.95 345,683.11
Instruction-Related Technology 6500 4.999.054 88 4,121,215.58 3.812,696.94 308.518.64
Board 7100 843,023 .47 706,759.27 703.043 21 3.716.06
General Administration 7200 896,348 52 1,065,705.56 1,029,176.30 36,529.26
School Administration 7300 15,244.387.26 15,953.080.82 15.496.410.26 456,670.56
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7410 23.931.63 25,381.15 1,358 .00 24.023.15
Fiscal Services 7500 1,690,062.20 1.891.482 42 1.887.498.92 3,983.50
Food Services 7600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Central Services 7700 3.201.360.13 3.440.297.01 3.279.614.53 160,682.48
Student Transportation Services 7800 13.496.405.75 13.777.844.81 13,605,842 53 172,002.28
Operation of Plant 7900 13.849.752.55 16.862.135.05 16,720,001.11 142,133.94
Maintenance of Plant 8100 4.253,156.26 3,833,039.81 3.740.153.23 92.886.58
Administrative Technology Services 8200 3.960.045.11 3,101,471.79 2.586,741.73 514,730.06
Community Services 9100 2,004,202.09 1.907.024.30 1.880.394 40 26,629.90
Debt Service: (Function 9200)
Redemption of Principal 710 0.00 0.00
I 720 0.00 0.00
Due and Fees 730 0.00 0.00
Other Debt Service 791 0,00 0.00

Capital Outlay:

Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7420 6.510.00 6,510.00 0.00
Other Capital Outlay 9300 1.476.290.03 1,476,290.03 0.00

Total Expenditures 249.272.273.27 238,013.971.82 227.890.327.94 10.123.643.88

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (18,734,883.76) (7.259.855.68) 2631.117.63 9.890.973.31

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Issuance of Bonds 3710 0.00 0.00
Premium on Sale of Bonds 3791 0.00 0.00
Discount on Sale of Bonds 891 0.00 0.00

Proceeds of Lease-Purchase Agreements 3750 0.00 0.00
Premium on Lease-Purchase Agrecments 3793 0.00 0.00
Discount on Lease-Purchase Agr 893 0.00 0.00

Loans 3720 0.00 0.00

Sale of Capital Assets 3730 0.00 0.00

Loss Recoveries 3740 20,000.00 676.59 676.59 0.00

Proceeds of Forward Supply Contract 3760 0.00 0,00

Face Value of Refunding Bonds 3715 0.00 0.00
Premium on Refunding Bonds 3792 0,00 0.00
Discount on Refunding Bonds 802 0.00 0.00

Refunding Lease-Purchase Agreements 3755 0.00 0.00
Premium on Refunding Lease-Purchase Agreements 3794 0.00 0.00
Discount on Refunding Lease-Purchase Agreements 894 0.00 0.00

Payments to Refunding Escrow Agent (Function 9299) 760 0.00 0.00

Transfers In 3600 6.052.177.00 4,944,393 88 4,944,393 .88 0.00

Transfers Out 9700 (273.744.89) (370.577.35) (370,577.35) 0.00

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 5,798.432.11 4,574,493.12 4.574,493.12 0.00

SPECIAL ITEMS

0.00 0.00

EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

0.00 0.00

Net Change in Fund Balances (12,936.451.65) (2.685.362.56) 7.205,610.75 9.890,973.31

Fund Balances, July 1, 2020 2800 23,540,266.75 23.540.266.75 23,540.266.75 0.00

Adjustments to Fund Balances 2891 0.00 0.00

Fund Balances, June 30, 2021 2700 10,603.815.10 20,854.904.19 30,745.877.50 9,890,973.31
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - FOOD SERVICES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts Vartance with
Account Actual Final Budget -
Number Ongmal Final Amounts Positive (Negative)

REVENUES

Federal Direct 3100 0.00 0.00

Federal Through State and Local 3200 8.379.302.00 19.857.017.40 12,920.146.66 (6.936.870.74)

State Sources 3300 129.014.00 129.640.00 108,130.00 (21.510.00)

Local Sources:

Property Taxes Levied. Tax Redemptions and Excess Fees for 3411, 3421,

Operational Purposes 3423 0.00 0.00

Property Taxes Levied. Tax Redemptions and Excess Fees for 3412, 3421,

Debt Service 3423 0.00 0.00

Property Taxes Levied, Tax Redemptions and Excess Fees for 3413, 3421,

Capital Projects 3423 0.00 0.00

Local Sales Taxes 3418, 3419 0.00 0.00

Charges for Service - Food Service 345X 5.371.856.00 5.371.856.00 1.931.578.28 (3,440,277.72)
Impact Fees 3496 0.00 0.00

Other Local Revenue 491434 185.828.08 175,831.22 (9.997.46

Total Local Sources 3400 5.376,770.34 5,557,684.68 2,107,409.50 (3.450,275.18)

Total Revenues 13.885.086.34 25,544.342.08 15,135.686.16 (10,408.655.92)

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Instruction 5000 0.00 0.00
Student Support Services 6100 0.00 0.00
Instructional Media Services 6200 0.00 0.00
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 6300 0.00 0.00
Instructional Staff Training Services 6400 0.00 0.00
Instruction-Related Technology 6500 0.00 0.00
Board 7100 0.00 0.00
General Administration 7200 0.00 0.00
School Admimistration 7300 0.00 0,00
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7410 0.00 0.00
Fiscal Services 7500 0.00 0.00
Food Services 7600 17.568.925.84 19.262.184.55 11.394,528.99 7.867,655.56
Central Services 7700 0.00 0.00
Student Transportation Services 7800 0.00 0.00
Operation of Plant 7900 0.00 0.00
Maintenance of Plant 8100 0.00 0.00
Admunistrative Technology Services 8200 0.00 0.00
Community Services 9100 0.00 0.00
Debt Service: (Function 9200)
Redemption of Principal 710 0.00 0.00
Interest 720 (.00 0.00
Dues and Fees 730 0.00 0.00
Other Debt Service 791 0.00 0.00

Capital Outlay:

Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7420 0.00 0.00
Other Capital Outlay 9300 788,767.32 788.767.32 0.00

Total Expenditures 17,568,925.84 20,050,951.87 12,183.296.31 7.867.655.56

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (3,683,839.50) 5,493,390.21 2,952,389.85 (2,541,000.36)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Issuance of Bonds 3710 0.00 0.00
Premium on Sale of Bonds 3791 0.00 0.00
Discount on Sale of Bonds 891 0.00 0.00

Proceeds of Lease-Purchase Agreements 3750 0.00 0.00
Premium on Lease-Purchase Agr 3793 0.00 0.00
Discount on Lease-Purchase Agreements 893 0.00 0.00

Loans 3720 0.00 0.00

Sale of Capital Assets 3730 0.00 0.00

Loss Recoveries 3740 0.00 0.00

Proceeds of Forward Supply Contract 3760 0.00 0.00

Face Value of Refunding Bonds 3715 0.00 0.00
Premium on Refunding Bonds 3792 0.00 0.00
Discount on Refunding Bonds 892 0.00 0.00

Refunding Lease-Purchase Agreements 3755 0.00 0.00
Premium on Refunding Lease-Purchase Agreements 3794 0.00 0.00
Discount on Refunding Lease-Purchase Agreements 894 0.00 0.00

Payments to Refunding Escrow Agent (Function 9299) 760 0.00 0.00

Transfers In 3600 0.00 0.00

Transfers Out 9700 0.00 0.00

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

SPECIAL ITEMS

0.00 0.00

EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

0.00 0.00

Net ('h!ngg_ig Fund Balances (3.683,839.50) 5.493.390.21 2.952,389.85 (2.541.000.36)

Fund Balances, July 1, 2020 2800 7.660,202.99 7.660,202.99 7.660,202.99 0.00

Adjustments to Fund Balances 2891 0.00 0.00

Fund Balances, June 30, 2021 2700 3.976,363.49 13,153,593.20 10,612,592.84 (2.541.000.36
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - OTHER FEDERAL PROGRAMS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Exhibit E-2b
Page 23

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Account Actual Final Budget -
Number _Original Final Amounts Positive (Negative)

REVENUES

Federal Direct 3100 2.995.541.56 6.633.414.58 3.969.793 71 (2.663.620 87)

Federal Through State and Local 3200 13.766,106.78 19.452.301.18 15,707,696.98 (3.744.604.20)

State Sources 3300 0.00 0.00

Local Sources:

Property Taxes Levied, Tax Redemptions and Excess Fees for 3411, 3421,

Operational Purposes 3423 0.00 0.00
Property Taxes Levied, Tax Redemptions and Excess Fees for 3412, 3421,

Debt Service 3423 0.00 0.00
Property Taxes Levied, Tax Redemptions and Excess Fees for 3413, 3421,

Capital Projects 3423 0.00 0.00
Local Sales Taxes 3418, 3419 0.00 0.00
Charges for Service - Food Service 345X 0.00 0.00
Impact Fees 3496 0.00 0.00
Other Local Revenue 0.00 0.00
Total Local Sources 3400 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00

Total Revenues 16.761.648.34 26,085.715.76 19,677,490.69 (6,408.225.07)

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Instruction 5000 10,287.603.27 12,952.777.67 9.070,504.09 3.882,273.58
Student Support Services 6100 1,075,401.35 2.077,537.40 1.206,247.16 871,290.24
Instructional Media Services 6200 549.417.47 619.214.16 62.638.65 556,575.51
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 6300 2.711,422.32 3,353.534.08 3.111,149.13 242,384.95
Instructional Staff Training Services 6400 998,553.31 1.655.819.65 1.147,805.84 508.013.81
Instruction-Related Technology 6500 158,257.99 220,754.71 196,607 88 24,146.83
Board 7100 0.00 0.00
General Administration 7200 486,906.42 652,007.37 479372.68 172,634.69
School Administration 7300 54.406.22 372,066.95 273.710.99 98.355.96
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7410 3,058.42 1.529.21 1,529.21
Fiscal Services 7500 0.00 0.00
Food Services 7600 0.00 0.00
Central Services 7700 21,090.53 269.524 51 250.115.10 19,409 41
Student Transportation Services 7800 14,000.00 33.201.31 10,470.06 22,731.25
Operation of Plant 7900 33.205.53 3,393.507.74 3.305.961.07 87.546.67
Maintenance of Plant £100 8.787.00 13,574.00 0.00 13.574.00
Administrative Technology Services 8200 0.00 0.00
C ity Services 9100 629,550.22 839.715.14 472374 58 367.340.56
Debi Service: (Function 9200)
Redemption of Principal 710 0.00 0.00
Interest 720 0.00 0.00
Dues and Fees 730 0.00 0.00
Other Debt Service 791 0.00 0.00

Capital Outlay:

Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7420 0.00 0.00
Other Capital Outlay 9300 459.581.60 459.581.60 0.00

Total Expenditures 17,028,601.65 26,915.874.71 20,048.068.04 6,867.806.67

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (266,953.31) (830.158.95) (370.577.35) 459,581.60

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Issuance of Bonds 3710 0.00 0.00
Premium on Sale of Bonds 3791 0.00 0.00
Discount on Sale of Bonds 891 0.00 0.00

Proceeds of Lease-Purchase Agreements 3750 0.00 0.00
Premium on Lease-Purchase Agreements 3793 0.00 0,00
Discount on Lease-Purchase Agreements 893 0.00 0.00

Loans 3720 0.00 0.00

Sale of Capital Assets 3730 0.00 0.00

Loss Recoveries 3740 0.00 0.00

Proceeds of Forward Supply Contract 3760 0.00 0.00

Face Value of Refunding Bonds 3715 0.00 0.00
Premium on Refunding Bonds 3792 0.00 0.00
Discount on Refunding Bonds 892 0.00 0.00

Refunding Lease-Purchase Agreements 3755 0.00 0.00
Premium on Refunding Lease-Purchase Agreements 3794 0.00 0.00
Discount on Refunding Lease-Purchase Agreements 894 0.00 0.00

Payments to Refunding Escrow Agent (Function 9299) 760 0.00 0.00

Transfers In 3600 273.744.89 370.577.35 370,577.35 0.00

Transfers Out 9700 0.00 0.00

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 273,744 .89 370,577.35 370,577.35 0.00

SPECIAL ITEMS

0.00 0.00

EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

0.00 0.00

Net Change in Fund Balances 6,791.58 (459.581.60) (0.00) 459.581.60

Fund Balances. July 1, 2020 2800 0.00 0.00

Adjustments to Fund Balances 2891 0.00 0.00

Fund Balances. June 30, 2021 2700 6.791.58 (459.581.60) (0.00) 459.581.60
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF SANTA ROSA COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - FEDERAL EDUCATION STABILIZATION FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
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Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Account Actual Final Budget -
Number Oniginal Final Amounts Positive (Negative)

REVENUES

Federal Direct 3100 0.00 0.00

Federal Through State and Local 3200 4.416.516.65 11,810.410.35 10,380,138.00 (1.430,272.35)

State Sources 3300 0.00 0.00

Local Sources:

Property Taxes Levied, Tax Redemptions and Excess Fees for 3411, 3421,

Operational Purposes 3423 0.00 0.00
Property Taxes Levied, Tax Redemptions and Excess Fees for 3412, 3421,

Debt Service 3423 0.00 0.00
Property Taxes Levied. Tax Redemptions and Excess Fees for 3413, 3421,

Capital Projects 3423 0.00 0.00
Local Sales Taxes 3418, 3419 0.00 0.00
Charges for Service - Food Service 345X 0.00 0.00
Impact Fees 3496 0.00 0.00
Other Local Revenue 0.00 0.00
Total Local Sources 3400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Revenues 4.416,516.65 11,810.410.35 10.380.138.00 (1,430,272 35)

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Instruction 5000 2964,187.12 9,287.107.91 B.111,594.16 1,175.513.75
Student Support Services 6100 397.778.93 751.146.79 457.620.72 293,526.07
Instructional Media Services 6200 0.00 0.00
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 6300 $8.000.00 41,608.43 46,391.57
Instructional Staff Training Services 6400 32.543.70 131,451.75 33,919.75 97.532.00
Instruction-Related Technology 6500 0,00 0.00
Board 7100 0.00 0.00
General Administration 7200 135,936.50 130.528.63 5.407.87
School Administration 7300 0.00 0.00
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7410 0.00 0.00
Fiscal Services 7500 0.00 0.00
Food Services 7600 0.00 0.00
Central Services 7700 0.00 0.00
Student Transportation Services 7800 11.950.50 8.581.27 8,581.27 0.00
Operation of Plant 7900 972,556.40 1,352,686.13 1.274,590.36 78,095.77
Maintenance of Plant 8100 0.00 0.00
Administrative Technology Services 8200 0.00 0.00
Community Services 9100 37,500.00 55.500.00 41.776.80 13.723.20
Debt Service: (Function 9200)
Redemption of Principal 710 0.00 0.00
Interest 720 0.00 0.00
Dues and Fees 730 0.00 0.00
Other Debt Service 791 0.00 0.00

Capital Outlay:

Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7420 0.00 0.00
Other Capital Outlay 9300 279.917.88 279917 .88 0.00

Total Expenditures 4,416,516.65 12,090,328.23 10.380,138.00 1,710,190.23

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 0.00 (279.917.88) 0.00 279.917.88

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Issuance of Bonds 3710 0.00 0.00
Premium on Sale of Bonds 3791 0.00 0.00
Discount on Sale of Bonds 891 0.00 0.00

Proceeds of Lease-Purchase Agreements 3750 0.00 0.00
Premium on Lease-Purchase Agreements 3793 0.00 0.00
Discount on Lease-Purchase Agreements 893 0.00 0.00

Loans 3720 0.00 0.00

Sale of Capital Assets 3730 0.00 0.00

Loss Recoveries 3740 0.00 0.00

Proceeds of Forward Supply Contract 3760 0.00 0,00

Face Value of Refunding Bonds 3715 0.00 0.00
Premium on Refunding Bonds 3792 0.00 0.00
Discount on Refunding Bonds 892 0.00 0.00

Refunding Lease-Purchase Agreements 3755 0.00 0.00
Premium on Refunding Lease-Pi Agreements 3794 0.00 0.00
Discount on Refunding Lease-Purchase Agreements 894 0.00 0.00

Payments to Refunding Escrow Agent (Function 9299) 760 0.00 0.00

Transfers In 3600 0.00 0.00

Transfers Out 9700 0.00 0.00

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

SPECIAL ITEMS

0.00 0.00

EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

0.00 0.00

Net Change in Fund Balances 0.00 (279.917.88) 0.00 279.917.88

Fund Balanges. July 1, 2020 2800 0.00 0.00

Adjustments to Fund Balances 2891 0.00 0.00

Fund Balances, June 30, 2021 2700 0.00 (279.917.88) 0.00 279.917.88

ESE 145




District School Board of Santa Rosa County
Net Pension Liability (Account 2365) Balance as of June 30, 2021

June 30, 2021
Account 2365 Balance
Florida Retirement System - Share of Net Pension Liability 121,318,714
Health Insurance Subsidy Program - Share of Net Pension Liability 49,869,839
$ 171,188,553

I certify that, based on the entries published by the Florida Retirement System, the balance above may be
incorporated in the Schedule of Long-Term Liabilities portion of the 2020-2021 Form ESE 348, Report
of Financial Date to the Commissioner of Education, by the Florida Department of Education's Office of
Funding and Financial Reporting staff.

September 9, 2021

Signature of Superintendent or Designee Date



